Town of Beaufort, NC
701 Front St. - P.O. Box 390 - Beaufort, N.C. 28516
252-728-2141 - 252-728-3982 fax - www.beaufortnc.org

Town of Beaufort Board of Commissioners Work Session Meeting
4:00 PM Monday, October 25, 2021 - Zoom Meeting due to COVID-19 Pandemic
Monthly Meeting

Call To Order
Roll Call

Agenda Approval
Project Updates
Public Comment

Items for Discussion and Consideration

|~

COVID Numbers in Carteret County, Returning to In-Person Meetings, Employee Emergency
Medical Leave Check-In

Minutes- Past
Minutes- Current
Proposed 2022 Board of Commissioners Meeting Dates

Repeal of Demolition Ordinance - 400 Pollock Street

Wastewater Treatment Capacity & Allocation Update
Upcoming BDA Events

Tent Discussion

Financial Notes

. FY 2022 Budget Amendment 4

. Capital Project Ordinances - American Rescue Plan Act

Mayor/Commissioner Comments
Closed Session

1. Personnel
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Adjourn




OF BE4
W™ Ty,

Town of Beaufort, NC

701 Front St. - P.O. Box 390 - Beaufort, N.C. 28516
252-728-2141 - 252-728-3982 fax - www.beaufortnc.org

Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting
Virtual Meeting
6:00 PM — Monday, Oct. 25, 2021

AGENDA CATEGORY: Items for Discussion and Consideration

SUBJECT: COVID Numbers in Carteret County, Emergency Leave
and Returning to In-Person Meetings Check-In

BRIEF SUMMARY:

COVID Numbers in Carteret County

With COVID and the dominant delta variant cases on the rise in Carteret County and across
the State of North Carolina, the Board agreed to hold off on returning to in-person meetings.
The Board directed staff to provide an update on current county and state COVID metrics at
each Board of Commissioners meeting to assess when to return to in-person meetings
safely. Since data trends are released daily, those metrics will be provided at the meeting
on Monday, November 8, 2021.

Returning to In-Person Meetings Check-In

Currently, all Town Boards (elected and volunteer) are conducting meetings virtually via
Zoom with the exception of the Beaufort Harbor and Waterways Master Plan Advisory
Committee who has permission to meet under a hybrid model at the Beaufort Hotel.

All meetings will continue to be open to the public and individuals may join in-person or
virtually via Zoom. This policy is scheduled to be reviewed at each meeting of the Board of
Commissioners.

Staff has placed an order for upgrades to equipment at the Train Depot in order to
accommodate hybrid meetings. A date has not been provided from the vendor as to when
this equipment will be installed.

Emergency Paid Sick Leave Policy Extension Check-In

At the October 11, 2021 Regular Meeting, the BOC voted to approve the policy extension
with the requirement that in order to qualify the employee must be vaccinated. The policy is
scheduled to be reviewed at each meeting.
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REQUESTED ACTION:
Review polices.
EXPECTED LENGTH OF PRESENTATION:

10 minutes

SUBMITTED BY:
Mayor Newton & Elizabeth Lewis, Town Clerk

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED:
No




Town of Beaufort, NC

701 Front St. - P.O. Box 390 - Beaufort, N.C. 28516
252-728-2141 - 252-728-3982 fax - www.beaufortnc.org

Board of Commissioners
Virtual Work Session
4:00 PM - Monday, Oct. 25, 2021

AGENDA CATEGORY: Items for Discussion and Consideration
SUBJECT: Minutes

REQUESTED ACTION: Consider approval of minutes as presented.
Find attached: May 10, 2021 and September 13, 2021

EXPECTED LENGTH OF PRESENTATION:
5 minutes

SUBMITTED BY:
Rachel Johnson, Event Coordinator
BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED: No
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Town of Beaufort, NC
701 Front St. - P.O. Box 390 - Beaufort, N.C. 28516
252-728-2141 - 252-728-3982 fax - www.beaufortnc.org

Town of Beaufort Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting
6:00 PM Monday, May 10, 2021 - Virtual
Minutes

Call to Order

Mayor Newton called the meeting to order.

Roll Call

Allen Coleman called roll and declared a quorum present for the meeting.
PRESENT:

Mayor Everette Newton

Commissioner Sharon Harker

Commissioner Ann Carter

Commissioner Marianna Hollinshed

Commissioner John Hagle

Commissioner Harker made motion to excuse Commissioner McDonald’s absence.
Motion carried unanimously.

Agenda Approval

Commissioner Hagle made motion to approve agenda as presented.

Motion carried unanimously.
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Public Comment

No public comment

Special Presentations

Mayor Newton read a Resolution Honoring and Remembering the Life of Joyce Fulford Former Mayor of
the Town of Beaufort N.C.

Manager Report

Town Manager John Day gave an update on the Budget being done. Turner Street project is almost
done. Update on the town hall railing, should be here by the 20™" at the latest. Light at Cedar and
Turner is back up and running. Commissioner Carter asked if Town hall will be open once the railing is
finished. Day stated Town Hall is currently open.

Items of Consent

Commissioner Hagle made a motion to approve the items of Consent.

Approved Unanimously

1. Minutes

2. Sewer Allocation Request 201 Rudolph Dr., Beaufort NC (Deerfield Shores Subdivision)

3. Carteret County Arts & Crafts Event Request to Close Off Two Parking Spaces

4. FY 2021 Budget Amendment No. 9

5. Capital Reserve Fund Budget Amendment No. 9 and Capital Project Fund Street & Pedestrian
Improvement Budget Amendment No. 2

Items for Discussion and Consideration

1.

Fourth of July Parade Event Application Request

Events Coordinator Rachel Johnson presented a request from the Beaufort Development
Association to host the Fourth of July parade on Sunday July 4, changing the time to 4 pm
with the route to remain the traditional route. Commissioner Harker asked if the Town had
the staff needed to facilitate the event. 6-7 Town Employees in addition to Police and Fire
staff are needed to work parades. Johnson confirmed staff had been asked to volunteer to
work on the holiday.

Commissioner Hollinshed moved approval as presented.
Motion passed unanimously.

Big Rock Event Request to Close Off Parking Spaces for a Food Truck
Event Coordinator Rachel Johnson presented a request to close parking spaces 161-165 for a
food truck on June 17 stating the applicant is willing to pay the $18 a day rate for paid




parking spaces. The food truck is only for Big Rock participants and serves as a COVID safe
way for the event to feed participants.

Commissioner Hollinshed moved for approval as presented.

Motion passed unanimously.

Navigable Water Ordinance Amendment 1

Town Manager John Day presented the ordinance amendment stating the Town needed to
address this issue to give the Police Chief discretion to ban vessels from overnight stays for a
period after receiving one citation for violation of the Navigable Waters Ordinance.
Commissioner Harker clarified that this is just for those people breaking the rules and asked
if 24 months is a reasonable amount of time.

Town Attorney Arey Grady confirmed that 24 months is a reasonable period and clarified
this only applies to those that have previously been cited.

Commissioner Hagle stated it’s a good place to start and can be changed if necessary.
Commissioner Hagle moved for approval as presented.

The motion passed unanimously.

Appointment to the Volunteer Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - The Town Clerk Allen
Coleman recommended the Board consider appointing an applicant to the vacant Parks and
Recreation Advisory Board position which is a partial term expiring September 24, 2024.
Commissioner Carter made a motion to open nominations.

Motion was approved unanimously.

Commissioner Harker nominated Sheresa Elliot.

No other nominations were made.

Commissioner Hagle moved that nominations be closed.

The nomination of Sheresa Elliot to the Parks & Recreation Board was approved
unanimously.

Beaufort Harbor and Waterways Master Plan Advisory Committee

Town Clerk Allen Coleman recommended the Board discuss and review the draft
charge/composition document for the Beaufort Harbor and Waterways Master Plan
Advisory Committee and provide direction to staff.

Commissioner Hagle made a motion for approval to move ahead with as planned.
Motion passed unanimously.

Legislative Alerts

Town Clerk Allen Coleman introduced a resolution in opposition to Senate Bill 349/House
Bill 401 Zoning Reform and opposition to House Bill 496 Property Owners’ Rights — Tree
Ordinance - two different things, we've got a resolution in opposition of Senate Bill 349 And
House Bill 401 is labeled increased housing opportunities. Also House Bill 496 providing that
counties and cities shall not adopt ordinances regulating the removal of trees for private
property without the expression of authorization of the General Assembly.




Commissioner Carter expressed concern about these bills, as they can destroy a
neighborhood by increasing the number of residents and not improving affordable housing.
Commissioner Hagle said he doesn’t support these bills.

Commissioner Harker said she supports these resolutions wholeheartedly.

Commissioner Hollinshed made a motion to approve the resolution that was presented to
oppose these bills.
Motion approved unanimously

7. FY 2022 Budget Presentation
Town Manager John Day advised of all the accomplishments that the town has completed in
FY2021. Day advised the Board of the need for a full-time Human Resources officer. He
thanked the Mayor and Commissioners for the support and resources they provide. He also
thanked the town employees for the important services they provide to residents and to the
to the town every day. There were no questions from the commissioners.

Mayor/Commissioner Comments
Commissioner Carter: Please if you have not been vaccinated, please do so.

Commissioner Hagle: Thanks to all the applicants for the parks and rec board. Very pleased
with progress of construction being done.

Commissioner Harker: Thanks to town staff for putting together a comprehensive budget. The
accomplishments that this board has made from the years past, it's put our town into a much
better position, not just financially but through infrastructure and other needs that we have.

Commissioner Hollinshed: | want to thank my fellow Commissioners for the support on the
General Assembly initiative. Be prepared for hurricane season.

Adjourn
Commissioner Hagle made a motion to adjourn.

The motion was approved unanimously.

Mayor Everette Newton

Deputy Town Clerk Rachel Johnson

Minutes compiled by Jennifer Rossi and Rachel Johnson




Town of Beaufort, NC
701 Front St. - P.O. Box 390 - Beaufort, N.C. 28516
252-728-2141 - 252-728-3982 fax - www.beaufortnc.org

Town of Beaufort Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting
6:00 PM Monday, September 13, 2021 - Virtual
Minutes

Call to Order

Deputy Clerk, Rachel Johnson welcomed the public to the meeting.

Mayor Newton called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

Roll Call

Deputy Clerk, Rachel Johnson conducted the roll call and declared a quorum present.

PRESENT

Mayor Everette Newton
Commissioner Sharon Harker
Commissioner Charles McDonald
Commissioner Ann Carter
Commissioner Marianna Hollinshed
Commissioner John Hagle

Agenda Approval

Commissioner Hagle made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Mayor Newton conducted a
roll call vote. The motion passed unanimously.

Motion made by Commissioner Hagle.
Voting Yea: Commissioner Harker, Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Carter, Commissioner Hollinshed

Manager Report

Town Manager, John Day provided the Manager Report. Mr. Day informed the Board that the new
sweeper truck is here and operational.

Mr. Day then announced and welcomed three new employees with the Town: Sam Burdick is the new
Town Planner, Jared Meyer started with the Police Department last Monday, and Gideon Hughes is the
new equipment operator in the sewer department

10
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Mayor Newton asked the Board for any questions regarding the Manager Report. There were none.

Items of Consent

There were none.

Public Comment

No public comments were made.

Items for Discussion & Consideration

1.

COVID Numbers in Carteret County, Mask Ordinance Discussion and Returning to In-
Person Meetings Check-In

Mayor Newton said that active cases from last week went from 257 up to 335, and then back
down to 227 today. He added that although there was an increase of 78 positive cases,
hospitalizations have stayed pretty steady at 22-24 over the last week. He added that,
unfortunately, there are some deaths to report, adding another death was reported today.

Mayor Newton further added that he had spoken with Dr. Noble regarding their COVID monitoring
of the Waste Water Treatment Plant, and that she reported a slight decrease in the COVID
numbers.

Mayor Newton then asked the Board to share its thoughts on the Mask Ordinance. Discussion
ensued. The Commissioners unanimously agreed to keep the Mask Ordinance in place at this
time.

Commissioner Harker asked for an update on the $20,000 the Town would be receiving to
purchase equipment to support a hybrid [virtual and in person] meeting format. Mr. Day
explained that Allen Coleman had been working on it prior to his departure. He said that Ms.
Johnson may have additional information. Ms. Johnson said that she did not, but that it was on
her list to follow up with this week.

Appointment to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board (PRAB)

Mayor Newton explained that there is currently one vacancy on the Parks and Recreation
Advisory Board. He then asked Ms. Johnson to read the list of applicants. Ms. Johnson
explained that the Town received 11 applications, but after further examination, realized
that one of the applicants has since relocated [outside of the corporate limits] and is no
longer eligible for appointment. The following applied for appointment to the PRAB:
Elizabeth Bertram, Garrett Carpenter, Charlie Deaton, Barbara Francis-Heckman, Sonny
Haynes, Jill Jaworski, Mark Orlando, Billy “Bill” Richburg, Zeb Schobernd, James Taylor
and Doug Williams.

Mayor Newton asked for a motion to open the floor for nominations. Commissioner
Harker made a motion to open the floor for nominations. Mayor Newton conducted a roll
call vote and the motion passed unanimously.

Voting Yea: Commissioner Carter, Commissioner Hagle, Commissioner Harker,
Commissioner Hollinshed, Commissioner McDonald

Mayor Newton asked the Board for nominations. Commissioner Harker nominated
Barbara Francis-Heckman. Commissioner Carter nominated Garrett

Carpenter. Commissioner Hollinshed nominated Charlie Deaton. Commissioner Hagle
nominated Jill Jaworski.

Mayor Newton then went through the roster and asked each commissioner who they
would like to vote for.
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Commissioner Hollinshed said her vote would be for Charlie Deaton. Commissioner

Carter said her vote would be for Garrett Carpenter. Commissioner McDonald said his
vote would be for Barbara Francis-Heckman. Commissioner Hagle said his vote would be
for Jill Jaworski. Commissioner Harker said her vote would be for Barbara Francis-
Heckman

Mayor Newton asked John Day, Town Manager, how to work through this appointment.
Mr. Day suggested naming each of those nominated and asking for a vote for everyone in
order to clean up the slate.

Mayor Newton conducted a roll call vote for Barbara Francis-Heckman.

Voting Yea: Commissioner Hollinshed, Commissioner Hagle, Commissioner Harker
Voting Nay: Commissioner Carter, Commissioner McDonald

Mayor Newton conducted a roll call vote for Garrett Carpenter.

Voting Yea: Commissioner Carter

Voting Nay: Commissioner Hollinshed, Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner
Hagle, Commissioner Harker

Mayor Newton conducted a roll call vote for Charlie Deaton.
Voting Yea:

Voting Nay: Commissioner Hollinshed, Commissioner Carter, Commissioner
McDonald, Commissioner Hagle, Commissioner Harker

Mayor Newton conducted a roll call vote for Jill Jaworski
Yea: Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Hagle
Nay: Commissioner Hollinshed, Commissioner Carter, Commissioner Harker

Mayor Newton provided a summary of the results: three votes for Francis-Heckman, one
vote for Carpenter, zero votes for Deaton, and two votes for Jaworski. Mayor Newton
asked John Day for guidance. Mr. Day said that someone could move to appoint the first
one, Barbara Francis-Heckman by acclamation since that’s the one with the most votes,
or that the Board could go through all of them, whichever the Board prefers. He said that
the Board could just vote on Francis-Heckman, which he anticipated would prevail based
on the votes so far.

Mayor Newton conducted a roll call vote to appoint Barbara Francis-Heckman to the
Parks and Recreation Advisory Board. Barbara Francis-Heckman was appointed to the
Parks and Recreation Advisory Board on a 4/1 vote, with Commissioner McDonald
opposed.

Voting Yea: Commissioner Hollinshed, Commissioner Carter, Commissioner Hagle,
Commissioner Harker

Voting Nay: Commissioner McDonald

Voting Yea: Commissioner Harker, Commissioner Carter, Commissioner Hollinshed,

Commissioner Hagle
Voting Nay: Commissioner McDonald

Change Order Request — FY20 Street Rehabilitation & Construction (Sidewalks)

Greg Meshaw, Town Engineer, reminded the Board of a contract last year with Thomas Simpson
Construction primarily for the rehabilitation, reconstruction and construction of roughly three miles
of town streets. He added that the contract also included a small portion of sidewalk construction,
and that the majority of the street construction has been completed, not including a few “punch

list” items. Mr. Meshaw said staff is ask’
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2.

the contract with Thomas Simpson Construction in the amount of $323,271.33 for the FY20

Street Rehabilitation and Construction Project, so that the town can continue on with the sidewalk
construction, and finalize quantities for most of the street construction.

Mayor Newton asked the Board if there were any questions regarding the

request. Commissioner Carter asked if the amount was in line with the anticipated costs. Mr.
Meshaw confirmed. Commissioner McDonald asked why there is a change order if it was the
anticipated cost. Mr. Meshaw explained that actual money was not put in the contract, as the
locations were identified, but the final design had not been completed. John Day, Town Manager,
explained that there was no way to include the construction cost as it was unknown at the time of
the contract. Further discussion ensued.

Mayor Newton asked the Board to make a motion on the change order request for the contract
with Thomas Simpson Construction Company in the amount of $323,271.33 for the FY20 Street
Rehabilitation and Construction Project.

Commissioner Hagle made a motion to approve the request as submitted. Mayor Newton
conducted a roll call vote. The motion passed unanimously.

Voting Yea: Commissioner Carter, Commissioner Hagle, Commissioner Harker, Commissioner
Hollinshed, Commissioner McDonald

Motion made by Commissioner Hagle.
Voting Yea: Commissioner Harker, Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Carter,
Commissioner Hollinshed, Commissioner Hagle

Public Hearing

Kyle Garner, Director of Planning and Inspections, presented a summary of the request to rezoned 302 Cedar
Street from B-1 to R-8. He said that the current use of the property is a single family home, and it is a historic
home that the owners are trying to renovate. However, the lot is non-conforming, as well as the use. If
rezoned to residential, the owners would be allowed some relief through Section 11 — the Nonconformities
Section of the LDO [Land Development Ordinance] to renovate the house, and to meet the historic standards.

Mayor Newton asked the Board if there were any questions regarding the request. Commissioner Hagle asked
Mr. Garner if this would make the use conforming, and if the setbacks would remain non-conforming. Mr.
Garner confirmed. There were no other questions.

Mayor Newton asked the Board for a motion to open the Public Hearing. Commissioner Hagle made a motion
to open the Public Hearing. Mayor Newton conducted a roll call vote. The motion passed unanimously.

Voting Yea: Commissioner Carter, Commissioner Hagle, Commissioner Harker, Commissioner Hollinshed,
Commissioner McDonald

Mayor Newton asked Deputy Clerk, Rachel Johnson, if anyone signed up to speak during the public
hearing. Ms. Johnson said that no one was signed up to speak during the public hearing.

Mayor Newton asked for a motion to close the Public Hearing. Commissioner Hagle made a motion to close
the Public Hearing. Mayor Newton conducted a roll call vote. The motion passed unanimously.

Voting Yea: Commissioner Carter, Commissioner Hagle, Commissioner Harker, Commissioner Hollinshed,
Commissioner McDonald

13




Mayor Newton asked for a motion regarding the request to rezone 302 Cedar Street. Commissioner

Hollinshed made a motion to approve the request as presented and read the Proclamation. Mayor Newton
conducted a roll call vote. The motion passed unanimously.

Voting Yea: Commissioner Carter, Commissioner Hagle, Commissioner Harker, Commissioner Hollinshed,
Commissioner McDonald

Motion made by Commissioner Hollinshed.
Voting Yea: Commissioner Harker, Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Carter, Commissioner Hollinshed,
Commissioner Hagle

Quasi-Judicial Proceeding

1. Request for Special Use Permit — 1550 Lennoxville Road - Gas-Service Station (Jim Dandy Stores);
Case No. 21-17

Mayor Newton read the following statement about quasi-judicial proceedings:

This hearing is a quasi-judicial evidentiary hearing. That means That means it is like a court
hearing, state law set specific procedures and rules concerning how this board must make its
decision. the Board of Commissioners must base its decision upon competent material and
substantial evidence in the record, quasi-judicial decision is a decision constrained by the
standards in the land development ordinance and based on the facts presented all applications
for special use permits must be consistent with the land development ordinance for the town of
Beaufort, where the special use is appropriate in the proposed location for certain topics. The
Board of Commissioners may hear opinion testimony from expert witnesses, individuals providing
expert opinion must be qualified as experts and provide the factual evidence, upon which they
base their expert opinion witnesses may swear or affirm their testimony. And as we get to the
each one of these topics, then we will swear people in as appropriate.

Mayor Newton explained that this is the reopening of the quasi-judicial proceeding for the request
for a special use permit at 1550 Lennoxville Road for a gas/service station — case 21-17.

Mayor Newton: I've got the roster of people that have been sworn in already. So we've got three
main topics that we're going to talk about, we're not going to talk about anything outside of those
three main topics unless there's a consensus among the board to open it up to other topics. So
this evening we're gonna be talking about traffic impacts, we're going to talk about environmental
impacts and interpretation of land use plan. And in regards to an L one zoning. So let's, let's get
started with the, the traffic impact, and let's bring out the applicant and see if the has anyone, Any
other experts that will be providing testimony this evening, specifically about traffic impact and if
they haven't been sworn in will swear then Mr. Davis Are you are you up.

Jim Davis: Yes, sir. As far as traffic, Chase Cullipher (Engineer, The Cullipher Group) is
prepared to present some additional evidence reports review tonight.

Mayor Newton: Thank you. And Mr Cullipher, is there a particular slide that you would like for us
to display for this.
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Chase Cullipher: Yes sir, there is, | do have a couple of PowerPoint slides that | can share my

screen. I'd be happy to present

Rachel Johnson: Mr Cullipher you should have access to screenshare.

Chase Cullipher: Thank you,

Mayor Newton: And Mr. Cullipher has received the oath.

Chase Cullipher: Can you see my screen now commissioners?

Mayor Newton: Yes. Got it, got it.

Chase Cullipher: Thank you guys. So, yes, after our last commissioners meeting. You had
requested additional information regarding a traffic impact analysis, | reached out to set the
engineering which is a traffic and engineering firm I'm familiar with in the Raleigh area. They had
told us, there'll be about four to six weeks to do a traffic impact analysis, we were concerned that
that time frame will not allow us to get that information to you by this month's this meeting. And
so, and then followed up and reached out to NC DOT, to see if they had any traffic information
and counts, and how they would receive this development on Lennoxville Road. And | think
probably a good result. To have reached out to them, because there was some recommendations
that they had to change the actual plan for the better of public safety. This is an email with
comments from Dwayne Smith, who's the Assistant District Engineer with with district two which
has Carteret County in it. This is a preliminary review because we didn't do an official driveway
permit application COVID J and Davis industries doesn't actually own the property, so we couldn't
do an official once it's technically preliminary, but I'm assuming you can read this email but I'll just
kind of read them, the three comments they had was there's a high probability that roadway
improvements will be required, but not limited to turn lanes, modification to existing driveways,
installations of median islands. So I'm gonna have a couple slides show these changes. The
second comment is pretty much says that there's local government regulations and if theirs are
more restrictive than DOT, then they would have to be utilized. | researched the ordinance with
the town. There are some traffic sections of this ordinance - in your ordinance, but they don't
really go in this direction and is more about internal to site, and signage landscaping, how to
impact traffic patterns. Umm..Then this third comment is a page 76 on their policies street
driveway access actually has specific requirements for corner businesses, and it even has an
even more specific requirements for gas stations, and so on this next slide. ...This is how you do
symmetrical road widening in DOT and | just want to include this and submit into evidence
because what we would be doing would be utilizing these dimensions and these design speeds
and any review done by DOT would have to adhere to the standard, and on my next slide, this is
an exhibit of potential right-of-way improvements. Inside there, based on this cuts and the first
comedy hand was adding a turn lane. And what we have here on this concept is a left turn lane
that would go from Lennoxville on to Ocean Street, and what this does is it allows continuing
movement traffic from east to west so people aren't stopping and blocking the road. And the next
comment they had in that number one was a modification to an existing drive, and what he
means by that is moving the entrance that's closest to Ocean Street. And the reason this is is this
eliminates competing traffic movements, so it reduces the potential for impact or collision. And
then he also had information to the media in Ireland and so within this road widening, there will be
a potential media knowledge is preliminary with it. If we do the official submittal these are, this is
about as most conservative of the version we could get. But what this does it eliminates the left
turn coming out on that westernmost entrance, and so you have a right in right out. So all these

improvements would be a substantial c¢ s my client, potentially, and it's all for the better of




public transportation and public safety. The third comment that he had is specifically in refereng

to this policy here, and what it has it has dimensional requirements for gas stations, and the
biggest component to this. | believe, is that there's a liturgy here is a 50 foot minimum or pub on
ones are perpendicular to the right away and 25 foot nhoon where they are parallel. And so that
actually impacted our site plan. | went into this component, and the other arowana components
and updated this. This slide here, which is a revised site layout. Everything in red shows where
we're meeting those rules on the previous slide. And what ended up doing is reduced, the canopy
size, because we went from four pumps in a square shape to three and a lot. This driver being
removed. Has this driveway meeting the requirements from the previous slide. And we updated
this with the parking and everything else to meet the town's ordinance. But now, it would also
meet DOT's requirements, pretty much to the letter, and all of it is really simplifies the site and
makes everything significantly safer for the public. That is all | had in this presentation if you
would like to ask any questions, | am prepared.

Mayor Newton: And let's stand on that for just a second. Mr. Davis Do you have anyone else
that's going to speak to traffic impacts?

Jim Davis: No sir, Not tonight.

Mayor Newton: Okay, thank you. And, is there anybody, any expert withesses that would like to
rebut these statements? Rachel, do you see anyone.

Rachel Johnson: | do, | hold on. Laura, I'm sorry the name disappeared on me. Will Laura
Satterly, raise your hand? Okay.

Laura Satterly: And we just like to.....

Mayor Newton: Hold on just a second. Are you an expert in traffic impacts?

Laura Satterly: No. We'd like our traffic expert to respond to the new information presented
tonight. Especially since this is the first time we've seen it. So we would need, we have Dr. Berg,
who you met last meeting, but he would need to formally review this. He has a PhD in civil
engineering, but this is the first time we're seeing this information.

Mayor Newton: Okay. And is he with us this evening?

Laura Satterly: He was not able to be with us this evening but he has to be able to review it in
advance so even if he was on these are detailed maps that we would need to look at it with a
close eye, just like they've had a chance to prepare this over the last few weeks.

Mayor Newton: Okay. Is there any other experts that would like to...

Laura Satterly: | would like to move to table until we've had a chance...
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Mayor Newton: Okay. Are there any other experts who would like to rebut? Alright let's go dow

to the next item which is environment. Excuse me. Before we do that let's go down the roster see
if there are any questions from the commissioners, specifically about traffic
impacts. Commissioner Hollinshed?

Commissioner Hollinshed: The only one is looking at that map, you're saying that they have to
turn on to Ocean, in order to get into the facility?

Chase Cullipher: Yes.

Commissioner Hollinshed: From the east.

Chase Cullipher: Yes, ma'am. That is the recommendation from DOT at this time and again, is
to minimize the amount of turning movements in the area, which is generally a very good way of
increasing safety and reducing collisions.

Commissioner Hollinshed: Thank you.

Mayor Newton: Commissioner Carter?

Commissioner Carter: | just... Does that mean your tanker trucks would also be turning in on
Ocean Street?

Chase Cullipher: Right now the tanker trucks and | think Jim could speak to this, to some extent
is that the same trucks that are going to the development further down the road would be ones
that are providing fuel here, and they would be turning right in, out and then they would be closed
Street and turn right continue going east. | believe would be the preferred plan, but that can be
coordinated with their drivers as needed.

Commissioner Carter: Is Ocean big enough to handle that?

Chase Cullipher: Yes, ma'am. It's a 60 foot public right-of-way with a standard of 22 foot of
asphalt, which is, which is a normal road. | would not see it being an issue. And there are radii
that have been widened to accommodate the turning limits of the truck in this proposed plan so it
makes it easier for them to ingress and egress.

Commissioner Carter: Thank you.

Mayor Newton: Commissioner McDonald? You're muted, sir.

Commissioner McDonald: | have no questions at this time.

Mayor Newton: Thank you. CommissierarHagle?
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Commissioner Hagle: Yeah. Uh, looking at the drawing, Someone coming from the east would
in go into the development, and then if they want to continue west... Won't they have to go back
to Ocean to get out?

Chase Cullipher: In this version, yes sir. Which.. | would like to add, it is the conservative...
Since the DOT hasn't any traffic counts completed since 2019, and we actually were trying to get
some traffic counts completed for this particular presentation. They were not able to do it. They
didn't have the equipment available. And so what | put together is the most conservative, if they
asked us to do all of these types of improvements, so it could be any variation of once an official
driveway permit application is submitted, this drawing was the most expensive and the largest
changes.

Commissioner Hagle: Looks like the traffic flow would be very confusing on the lot. I'll wait to
see what the traffic analysts say.

Mayor Newton: Thank you. Commissioner Harker?

Commissioner Harker: | would just like to have just a little time to look at it, other than the flash
that we've actually seen looks like, you know, contacting NC D O T paid off in some ways of
making some suggestions that we hadn't really thought of... The impact on Ocean, | just need just
a little second to to kind of take a look. Can we flash that back again.

Chase Cullipher: Yeah, I'll see if | can.

Commissioner Harker: Treat me like I'm in the third grade, with an A-minus. Can you take your
cursor and tell me where traffic is coming in and out of based on this?

Chase Cullipher: [moving cursor to follow route on screen] So if you were eastbound heading,
say toward Boathouse. You can make a right in and pull into a parking space or pull in and get
fuel. And then you can maneuver, if you're in the car space to pull back out right here. Right out,
but you could not make a left. You wanted to come forward and come out to Ocean Street, you
can make a right out of here, or a left out here. If you wanted to make a left you'd have to go to
Ocean Street, in this particular version.

Commissioner Harker: Okay. Is there any way to improve that being able to either make a U
turn to come around to avoid putting a lot of traffic on Ocean? If you're coming out of the complex
and heading to the Boathouse?

Chase Cullipher: I mean you, you could still use this right turn coming out of here to go east... so
you don't have to use Ocean. But to turn left and you wouldn't have to use Ocean to get into the
site, and it's, it's very common in DOT world to just try and eliminate as many close proximity
turning opportunities as possible. And so this was the recommendation presented to us by DOT.
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Commissioner Harker: Just one last question... If we're going to be exiting onto Ocean to

eventually make a left hand turn, going across... the oncoming traffic, have they figured out how
to navigate any potential accidents of people turning in and those coming out?

Chase Cullipher: Generally speaking, the public, learns and adapts to changes in traffic
patterns. It'd be similar as if we had the roundabout added at 101 and Live Oak Street. It takes a
little bit of time but then once people see it and understand that it usually goes off without a hitch.

Commissioner Harker: Okay. No further questions. Thank you for the review.

Mayor Newton: Thank you. Thank you. Let's go back to Mr. Davis for the environmental impacts.

Commissioner McDonald: All right, I'm gonna share my screen real quick, and jump to these
slides here. Comments from the previous meetings, and from the board members, relative to
environmental safety, we thought it might be simplest in the interest of time, to simply seek
state's, the state UST - Underground Storage Tank Divisions pre-approval for the site. Given its
history as, formerly a convenience store and gas station and also its, its location in a more or less
center of town. We thought that might be the simplest way to satisfy some of the environmental
safety concerns that have been presented to date. So what we did, we reached out to a state
engineer, a state certified UST engineer named Tim Loughlin. He is certified by North Carolina to
design these particular site plans that include petroleum lines, petroleum tanks, gas pumps, So on
and so forth. And what he did was draft, based on our preliminary site plan, he drafted a complete
design to submit to the state for pre-approval which is not necessarily common I've never done
that, and | wasn't sure what they would say, but he did formally submit our equipment list with the
approved manufacturers that are certified but stay of North Carolina. And what we got back was
this letter from Ms. Ruth Strauss. Ruth is head of the UST Permits and Inspections Branch. And
pretty much, what she said verbally and then followed up in this email is that given the equipment
that we were proposing to use, the location, and the fact that it was a modern system being
designed, versus reusing something that would have existed at this site years ago. She saw no
issue in a preliminary approval. However, her formal approval would require a formal UST-6 form
to be submitted and that is pretty much just the, the formal way of submitting the equipment list,
the actual design, but all that comes. Yes, a formal process that requires some ownership, some
fees, and we didn't feel like that was necessary quite at this point to go quite that far without
approval for the special use permit.

Jim Davis: Next, I've shared this before but this is just our compliance history, and then a letter
dated back in, | believe, July, that shows our current complete compliance at all of our locations,
that's been questioned a few times. I'll be happy to elaborate on that more if necessary, and we
also kind of ran out of time in the last meeting, and our two experts one of them didn't even have
time to speak in the first meeting, but they are both on the call tonight. Hunter Evans is owner and
president of Evans Environmental, he's on the call tonight. If anyone has specific questions, and
also Paul Sutton who y'all speak heard speak before about USDA design and his components,
he's also on call tonight, if, if there's any questions about the environmental safety of the system
that we're intending to install here. | believe we have enough people here tonight to answer those
guestions with expert testimony. We talked about California and North Carolina being pretty
similar, and how strict they are relative to UST compliance/regulatory restrictions. These are just
some examples of some, some locations that are near the San Francisco area on at the top of
your screen here. This is a loop neighborhood market. This store was built this is actually an
elementary school right here beside it. These are very densely populated neighborhoods. These
children walk to school every day. And this over here is actually high school, so it's just an
example of something similar where you have a densely populated urban area. A lot of different
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convenience. Down at the bottom, something also similar to Beaufort's situation. The Bridgewa

gas station - this is a large Marina, obviously the site is right across from San Francisco Bay and
some fairly similar situation to Lennoxville with Town Creek. And then this is just another
example over here of a convenience store located in densely populated urban area near a Port,
just trying to show that these are not. This is not an idea that that we're just coming up with these
are things that are done in our industry across the country, routinely. Lastly, again I've said that
fallen Hunter we're both on the call tonight on. If, after | get done speaking and go have some
specific questions | believe they can help answer those. And also just a brief follow up on the
comments made, | believed by Commissioner Hollinshead about canopy and how....

Mayor Newton: Mr. Davis if | can stop you there, that's kind of outside of the bounds of what we
wanted to accomplish this evening, unless there are specific questions later on. Thank you. All
right. All right. Is there anybody, uh, any experts that would like to rebut this? Rachel, do you see
anybody that wants to revert.

Rachel Johnson: | do not see anybody raising their hand. No, sir.

Mayor Newton: Okay. Thank you. So we'll go down to the last topic which was the interpretation
of gas station versus convenience store that was brought up and Kyle can you provide your
interpretation?

Kyle Garner: I'd be glad to, Mayor. Based on the ordinance, especially in the definition of gas-
service station. It does lend itself to give almost two different types of definitions. The first, of
course, talks about gas stations and the type of fluids and so forth that you can get. Then the
second part of it said, says that it may also be, which means that there are two different, two
different definitions... it can be this or it can be something else. In this particular case, the gas
station that we have or that we're proposing is that the applicant is requesting this the first part of
that definition. Ironically, much like a lot of other folks have given information, this evening. If you
were to use the Google search engine like a lot of folks did to gather their research. If you type in
service station or gas station. Ironically, you're going to see exactly what comes up in areas,
much like what you would do if you typed in convenience store. Matter of fact, they're almost
identical. And | would encourage folks to do that. And so hence, with that, Mayor. After discussion
with our town attorney, we felt extremely confident that the gas station portion fits the request of
the applicant in a special use permit.

Mayor Newton: Thank you. Let me pause right there, and then also listen to a rebuttal to that.
Let me go back, please, to the environmental side. | need to go through the commissioners and
see if you had any follow up questions, and I'll come right back to Kyle and the

rebuttal. Commissioner Hollinshed? You're on mute.

Commissioner Hollinshed: Sorry, | have none.

Mayor Newton: Okay, thank you very much. Commissioner Carter?

Commissioner Carter: | have none.

Mayor Newton: Thank you. Commissioner McDonald?
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Commissioner McDonald: | have, | have one, two questions that | need to get answered. And |
don't know whether it's appropriate time to ask them or not. However, it is in reference to safety.

Mayor Newton: But is it in reference to environmental safety?

Commissioner McDonald: Itis. And my question is, sir. The difference between the propane
and gasoline. As far as a leak, combustion, or whatever it may be, in order to bring in damages or
whatever to the neighborhood. What would be the difference?

Mayor Newton: Hey Mr. Davis, are you prepared to answer that?

Commissioner McDonald: | can answer it pretty generally and just simply say that propane is a
as a gas is actually a vapor, whereas gasoline is a liquid. The liquid will be stored below ground,
and a sealed system, our vapors actually are never released into the open environment. Whereas
propane, you know the tanks above ground. If you have a leak. There is going to be, you know,
unless you smell it, you're not going to notice it's there, whereas gasoline is actually a liquid
stored below ground, at a very safe temperature in a sealed container system. | don't know that
answer your question, completely... It does, but I think | can move forward with some other
guestions as we go along.

Mayor Newton: All right, thank you. Commissioner Hagle?

Commissioner Hagle: No questions. No questions about the environmental.

Mayor Newton: Great. And Commissioner Harker?

Commissioner Harker: Just a few questions. The evidence that you received from the
documents that you've shared, that'll be part of your expert witness that information that they're
commenting on is the system that you are currently using, correct? They're talking about the
system that you would be using... to put in the ground?

Jim Davis: that we would install, yes ma'am

Commissioner Harker: Okay. All right. And so this UST-6, you know, pre installation, I'm
assuming that something we can always get if things, you know, | guess somewhat progressed. If
not, you didn't really need it but that seemed like something they kind of recommended in there is
that correct?

Jim Davis: it would be required to get formal site approval for construction, kind of like a building
permit. Yes, ma'am.

Commissioner Harker: All right. No further questions.
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Mayor Newton: Thank you, and Commissioner McDonnell, would you like to hear from Chief

Ray, as far as your concerns, your safety concerns?

Commissioner McDonald: Not at this time, sir. Okay, thank you. All right, so let's let's go back to
the, the discussion that Kyle was was having. Is there any rebuttal to that discussion? And | think
| see Miss Smith.

Ms. Smith: Yes, thank you.

Mayor Newton: And Ms. Smith just for, for the record. Can you confirm.. are you an expert in
land use planning and the Land Development Ordinance?

Ms. Smith: | am an attorney, and | am an attorney with extensive experience in land
development ordinances and environmental regulation. I'm also representing some of the other
parties in this hearing. And so speaking on their behalf as their legal counsel.

Mayor Newton: Okay. In this particular case, it'll be as your expertise to to rebut the previous
comments.

Ms. Smith: And can | screenshare, Mr. Mayor? And my video is not on.

Mayor Newton: Absolutely. Rachel?

Rachel Johnson: That feature should be available now, and we also have two other people who
have their hands raised. We have a Laurie Cunningham and Bruce's iPhone.

Mayor Newton: Okay, well let's stand by and let's, let's get with Ms. Smith first.

Ms. Smith: All right, let me see if | can get those.... There we go.Can you see that?

Commissioner Hagle: No...

Ms. Smith: All right, let's see the screen share is on.

Rachel Johnson: Yes, ma‘'am. Is it a document you sent earlier today?

Ms. Smith: Yes, It's the PowerPoint presentation. Can you load it, is it labeled the Smith
rebuttal?

Rachel Johnson: Yes, | believe | can pull it up for you. Great, thank you.
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Mayor Newton: Ms. Smith, if you could please limit your conversations specifically to the topic

hand, please.

Ms. Smith: This is just an overview of the Beaufort land development ordinance so this is the, the
overview of how the ordinance works, and basically the Beaufort Land Development Ordinance
defines both convenience stores and gas service stations and defines them as distinct blend
uses. The ordinance recognizes that gasoline may be sold at both convenience stores and gas
stations, but the two land uses in the ordinance differ in the other types of services and retail
sales they provide in addition to sale of gasoline. Based on those differences between the two
land uses the ordinance allows gas stations in a number of districts where convenience stores
are not allowed. And the reverse is also true. In this case the ordinance allows gas stations in the
L-1 district by special use permit, but does not allow a convenience store. If you'll go to the next
slide please. These are the two definitions directly from the Beaufort Land Development
Ordinance so you can see, convenient food store means a retail store, designated and stopped to
sell primarily food, beverages gasoline and household items. The definition of gas service station
refers to a building or lot where gasoline, oil, greases and accessories are supplied, stored, and
dispensed to motor vehicles, and we're also vehicle equipment can be sold and vehicle serviced.
Next slide please. So as | said that these land uses overlap, but they also differ. So the definitions
recognize that both convenience stores and gas stations sell gasoline, but the definition of gas
station does not include a retail store that sells food, drink and other household items. The
definition of convenient food store does not include sales of tires, batteries, and other vehicle
equipment. Next slide. And this is a table showing how the Beaufort Land Development
Ordinance has treated these two different land uses. In the zoning districts. So as you can see
with the L-1 zoning district, the ordinance does not allow a convenience store, even by special
use permit. It does allow a gas station by special use permit. And you can see the other
commercial or transitional zoning districts, clearly the ordinance is making a distinction between
these two different types of land uses. And essentially making those distinctions based on the
types of services and retail that are being provided in addition to gasoline sale. Next slide please.
We will stop there, but this gets into the section of the ordinance that talks about the criteria for
issuing and approving a special use permit. And the very first criteria under the ordinance is that
the proposed use must be an allowable special use in the zoning district it is being located within.
And so in my legal opinion is certain that it's clear that the ordinance is treating gas stations and
convenience stores differently it defines them differently as distinct land uses and does not allow
a convenience store and the L-1 zoning district. I'll be glad to answer any questions.

Mayor Newton: Thank you. Let's, let's go over to Mr. Alexander first, and the attorney for the
applicant, | saw you had your hand up, and then we'll come back to Laura Cunningham. Mr.
Alexander?

Mr. Alexander: Good evening. Can you see me.

Mayor Newton: I've got you, yep. Thank you.

Mr. Alexander: Thank you. I'm going to share my screen really briefly, | have some legal
materials I like to run over with you, if | may... it says that the host is disabled participant screen
sharing.

Rachel Johnson: Yes. Is this information that was provided prior to the meeting?

Mr. Alexander: It was it was that A6 leg hterials.
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Rachel Johnson: Give me just one second, I'll get that pulled up.

Mr. Alexander: Thank you.

Rachel Johnson: | have Al, A2, A5.... I'm sorry, what was the title of it.

Mr. Alexander: It's A6 legal materials.

Rachel Johnson: | do not have that information.

Mr. Alexander: Okay, well, | have provided it to you before the hearing tonight but I'll just I'll just
go through my argument.

Rachel Johnson: You should be set up to screenshare.

Mr. Alexander: Okay, thank you...Sure. Here we go. Alright, so what we're looking at now is the
definition of gas station it's in the Beaufort land development ordinance. | understand there's been
some confusion about this point. However, when we interpret a land use Ordinance of this type,
we have to give plain meaning to the text so we've got a building our lot where gasoline, oil,
greases, and accessories are supplied, stored, and dispensed to motor vehicles. Well in this
application, Jim Dandy has provided a request for facility freezer application and the materials
clearly indicate that we have gas dispensers on site, so | don't think there's any question whether
we are dispensing gasoline at this site, so...

Mayor Newton: Mr. Alexander....

Mr. Alexander: Yes, sir?

Mayor Newton: My apologies. | was just looking at the roster of who's been sworn in and you
have not been sworn in, can you just stand by while the clerk towards you and just make this
official.

Mr. Alexander: That's fine.

Mayor Newton: Thank you.

Rachel Johnson: So, Mr. Russell. You can either swear or affirm...

Mr. Alexander: I'll swear.

Rachel Johnson: Do you swear that the evidence you shall give to the board in this action shall
be the truth, the whole truth and nothing-nressure, so help you God.
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Mr. Alexander: | do.

Mayor Newton: And my apologies for the for the interruption Mr. Alexander.

Mr. Alexander: That's okay, Mr Mayor, | appreciate it. Okay so we've got the definition of gas and service
station. And then... what, what the opposition is trying to make some use of is the fact that Mr. Davis, as a
result of an honest mistake being a lay person, inadvertently, wrote convenience store on the application
because he viewed the terms interchangeably. As we can see here from the definitions we got a
convenient food stores a retail store designated stock to sell primarily food, beverages, gasoline and
household items. So, just to clear the one point up were the, the application that's currently before the
board is an application for a gas station. The applicant amended the permit to more clearly state the
appropriate use that was contemplated by the land use ordinance, and that was done at the direction and
approval of the town so there's no, there's no question about what the application is as it's been
submitted, it's a gas station. The materials that are in the application clearly have gas dispensers labeled
on the plat maps and obviously that's what we're talking about is an underground storage tank for the use
of gas dispensing to the general public. Next things I'm going to show you are some... is a couple of cases
that | was able to find this afternoon in relation to this topic. We've got Lambeth brush, versus the town
of Kure Beach, and that is a case in which there was a dispute concerning the interpretation of the, the
town's board, or the town's ordinance, as it relates to surface area in the town, and I'm just to speed this
up because | know we are trying to move along pretty quickly tonight, I'm going to go down to a
highlighted section that | have for your review that | think is important for everyone to see and I'm having
trouble...[inaudible]. So when we're interpreting zoning ordinance, we need to understand that the
zoning ordinances derogate the common law property rights of a property owner and must be strictly
construed in favor of the free use of property. So, when you have statutory language that is clear and
unambiguous words in a statute must be construed in accordance with their plain meaning, unless a
statute provides an alternative. So, in this case, it's presumed that a land owner can use their property as
they see fit, unless the zoning ordinance specifically restricts his ability to do so. But when you look at the
plain language of the statute you clearly see that gas station is a contemplated use under the special use
section for a light industrial district of this type in the town of Beaufort. So, when the statutory language is
clear and unambiguous the words must be interpreted and given their play, meaning if it says gas station,
it means gas station, and he submitted.. Jim Davis has submitted an application for use as a gas station at
this particular site. And the issue with the convenience store that | have is, in my personal, well, in my
opinion, having interpreted at a convenience store in the town of Beaufort could be any store where they
sell food or other household items, and it would not necessarily have to sell gasoline at the convenience
store, you've got things like Big Daddy Wesleys, you've got places like Kwik e Mart and, you know, some
others that don't sell gasoline. So my understanding of the ordinances that when you talk about a pure
convenience store you could include businesses of that type within that definition. When we talk about
gas station in this light industrial district you've also got this as part of the definition, the right to use the
property for oil changes and tire changes, which to me is a more burdensome and invasive use of the
property, and it just stands to reason that if a use is the use of this property for a gas station will be
permitted that use as the use of the property. A secondary use of the property for a food store would not
necessarily be a deal breaker because the primary use is for a gas station, and then we've actually got the
ability to use the property for more invasive uses. So that was the town of Kure Beach and then we got
Proctor versus the City of Raleigh Board of Adjustments, that's 538 southeastern seconds 621 That's a
court of appeals case, the Court of Appeals in North Carolina, and that's more precedent about the plain
meaning rule in construing the zoning ordinance the courts are required to use the fundamental
principles of statutory construction interpretation. What statutory language is clear and unambiguous the
words in the statute must be construed in
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In accordance with the plain meaning unless the statute provides an alternative meaning. So,
what the, what Miss Smith and the her clients are basically suggesting is they're trying to create
an ambiguity between the interpretation of this gas station definition and the convenience store
definition. The fact remains though that the plain meaning of the statute, or the ordinance in this
case, says that it can be used as a gas station and there are in fact gas pumps on site, and |
would suggest that to read this particular section of the ordinance in any other way so that it
would prevent the use of this site in this manner would be approaching bad faith that to say,
because it's the plain meaning is just clear as day so that's what the statutes say us the
precedent and we have to interpret the statutes accordingly and follow the precedent that's been
set forth by the state courts of the State of North Carolina. So, that being said, at this time... |
know that we're still on this topic, but | would ask that the, the Board of Commissioners, allow us
to submit additional evidence on one of the points under the special use criteria. And | guess we
can get to that, once we're done with this particular section and then the board can consider if it
wants to hear that or not.

Mayor Newton: Thank you, and let's go over to Laurie Cunningham, please.

Laurie Cunningham: Mr. Mayor, I'm sorry. Miss Smith has addressed the concern that | had
already.

Mayor Newton: Okay. Thank you. So let's go down the roster with the commissioners and see if
there are any questions on this particular topic. Commissioner Hollinshed?

Commissioner Hollinshed: On the land use plan specifically?

Mayor Newton: Specifically, yes.

Commissioner Hollinshed: So, based on previous testimony, it was going to be a facility that
would sell gasoline. And also, what I'm going to call sundries, and is a example that was given
some kind of [inaudible], or whatever. So, in my mind, you can do one or the other. If you once
you combine them, you negated what is the intent, yes. So if you put a pack of knives up there in
your, in your service station and sell it, you've created a convenience store. That's, that's where
I'm going with this.

Mayor Newton: Okay. Commissioner Carter?

Commissioner Carter: I'm inclined to believe the same thing, it sounds like these people just
want a gas station there without a convenience store because it seems to be some concern about
having convenience store, which | think would be most useful to all of us. But do | understand it
correctly that they only want one? Um, so that would mean a gas station would be

appropriate? I'm not sure that | understood that clearly.

Mayor Newton: Would you like for me to ask Ms. Smith, that specifically?

Commissioner Carter: | would like you to ask the attorney please. The one that just spoke to us.
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Mayor Newton: Mr. Alexander?

Commissioner Carter: Yes.

Mayor Newton: Okay. Mr. Alexander?

Mr. Alexander: Thank you, thank you for the questions. | think... | think when, when we talk
about interpretation of this particular definition. The reason | uploaded that case to you from Kure
Beach is says that the zoning, um, zoning ordinances are in derogation of common law rights so
they have to be strictly construed. In this particular case, we have submitted a permit for a gas
station, but the definition of gas station, merely says that it's a place that dispenses gasoline, It
doesn't say that you can't sell.... it does, it doesn't restrict the right to sell food in addition to
gasoline at that site. So, if there really was an intent in drafting this to prevent the sale of, you
know, food and sundries at a gas station, | think he should stay that clearly, and it does not. So,
because we are stuck with a case precedent that tells us that we have to strictly construe the
ordinance in favor of the property rights of the applicant, my interpretation is that it's a permissible
use and you can't, you can't hang it up because they also sell food to that site. | understand that.

Commissioner Carter: It's kind of like to me. You're saying, Wait, can only be a gas station but,
in your opinion, it could be both and I've been thoroughly confused now. So, yes or no. Can they
have only one? Is that what you're saying?

Commissioner McDonald: My interpretation is under this definition they can do both. But if you
had if you had a convenience store only then it would not be appropriate for the site. And | grant
you that much.

Commissioner Carter: You're basically saying they could. What he gives, He asked for gas
station but a convenience store, actually could be included

Mr. Alexander: Under this definition, and the way and the due to North Carolina case law, yes, |
think it can be. And | understand there is potentially a conflict between these definitions in the in
the ordinance, and | also understand this has been developed quite a while ago and may need
some updating. But, you know since applicant has applied for this permit, based on the ordinance
as written. | think he's entitled to rely on the ordinance as written in terms of his permanent
approval in this case.

Commissioner Carter: And that's opinion, period, based on what you have seen.

Mr. Alexander: I'm making a legal argument on behalf of my client. Yes, ma'am.

Commissioner Carter: That's what I'm trying to find out. Thank you.

Mayor Newton: Okay. Commissioner McDonald?
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Commissioner McDonald: | am really, really confused and thanks, Ann and for getting that

straightened out. | was in the impression that the attorney was seeking to get a gas station.
However, if I understand correctly, he's asking for permission for a convenience store and a gas
station, which he is also in layman's terms, stating that the convenience store, and its wording
covers anything that is convenient, within the law to sell on that property, is my understanding.

Mr. Alexander: No sir.

Commissioner McDonald: So, if that be the case. What is that, what you're...is that what you're
basically saying?

Mr. Alexander: No, no sir, that, that is, that is not what we're saying. The application is for a gas
station. And there will be, you know, other items sold incident to the sale of gas but the primary
use for the property is for gas dispensing and an underground tank facility for a gas station. |
mean there's no question about that. So, | guess, you know this, This ambiguity that's trying to be
raised by Ms. Smith is, is kind of got the kind of got the view backwards, because it's presumed
that the property can be used by the owner or the applicant for reasonable purposes, and is then
the burden is on the town to construe this narrowly in favor of those rights so if it doesn't prevent
the sale of other items incident to gas and the definition, this, then the, the permit application, err,
the special use permit application as submitted would be appropriate because it clearly says you
can have a gas station and that's where we're going for as a gas station. | mean, | hate to, I'm not
trying to confuse you if anything I'm trying to undo some confusion that's kind of been sown
previously, | think, but you know | do recognize there are these two different definitions in the
Beaufort Ordinance, that may need to be cleared up in the future. But again, as it stands as
written application for a special use permit in this case would be appropriate based on the
existing definition. And in fact, if you know, as | said previously, if you have a convenience store
and another section of town, you could have a convenience store that did not sell gasoline. |
know it says, "and" it has those four things that it says it says gasoline, food and household items
and some other things. But what if what if there was an applicant who is searching, seeking to
have a convenience store? Would you deny them because they were not selling gasoline incident
to those other items? | don't think so. | think it would be subsumed within the definition, just like in
this case, the uh, the other sales of other items are subsumed within the definition of gas station.
Basically in plain meaning rule, you have to use ordinary everyday language, in terms to interpret
the statute. So, what do you think a gas station is what do you think of when you hear, see the
phrase gas station?

Ms. Smith: Mr. Mayor, may | address this?

Mayor Newton: Not right now, Ms. Smith, thank you. | also see some hands that are up. This is
for the, the commissioners to specifically ask questions about these topics. Commissioner
McDonald, do you have any other other questions?

Commissioner McDonald: Not at this time.

Mayor Newton: Thank you, Commissioner Hagle?

Commissioner Hagle: Well, the definitions are confusing. Your comments indicate that in cases
of convenience stores with a definition there they can sell gasoline destination can sell food or

whatever else they want. So it's a very ing situation, and it's too bad that the definitions are
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2.

so confusing, but | appreciate your input but I, | still think there's a difference. Because

sometimes there are gas stations that don't sell anything but gasoline, and there are convenience
stores that don't sell gasoline. So, in this case it combined news that our definition makes very
confusing.

Mayor Newton: Thank you. Commissioner Harker?

Commissioner Harker: Um, yes. Just making sure I'm off mute. | just want to stick with the fact
that we're gonna talk about the gas station. Simply and clear, without getting into a lot of that so
please stick strictly with the gas station and I'm going to stick with you, Mr. Alexander because
you did make a point. You're saying that the definition doesn't restrict the sale of sundries, but the
definition also doesn't permit it either. So, if we're sticking with the gas station principle, and it
doesn't state that you can do anything else other than that is where | need some clarity on that
So.

Mr. Alexander: Okay, yes ma'am.

Commissioner Harker: To assume that it's okay, |, I'd like to see a little bit about... | wrote down
statutes just to take a look at what you've presented a little bit clearly. But I'll let you go ahead and
finish it because I'll do have a follow up question after that.

Mr. Alexander: Yes, ma'am. | appreciate that question, and it is a good one, | think, | think, the
deciding factor on that issue, because it doesn't expressly permitted, | would refer you back to
that town of Kure Beach case that | cited to you. And there are some, that's why | cited that case
is because there's a presumption in the law that since the zoning ordinance is in derogation of the
applicant's common law rights to enjoy their property has got to be strictly construed. So you don't
go beyond what's actually written in the definition so you look at the definition, it says a gas
station, it's a place that dispenses gasoline to the public and has tanks for that purpose. Is this
application for a gas station facility? Yes it is. And there's nothing else said, so it's silent on that
issue. Therefore, you have to favor the common law rights of the applicant because it doesn't
specifically exclude that. So that's, that's, that's, that's kind of the tipping point, is the is the
precedent that | cited.

Commissioner Harker: Right. So, the enjoyment of the property is to include the sundry sales
because we have spoken with the applicant and he said you know, one without the other, it's not
gonna make any financial sense. To assume that this is going to be the right when he's actually
applied for the gas station, and not having the other sundries part, | don't know if we're presuming
that his right is to have the convenience store too when he specifically is asking for gas station.
Am | making that clear?

Mr. Alexander: Not entirely, but | think, | think...

Commissioner Harker: Presumptive right to have that along there when we didn't really
presume it to be... his presumptive right...

Mr. Alexander: Well, I don't know if ... presuming, maybe as | said, that might not be the right
word.. But | think it's, | think it's a matter of strictly construing the statute as it's written in this case

the ordinance, in this case the definitior that's when you focus in on, whether it's a gas
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station or not, and primarily it is a gas station that is primarily what he's going to be selling and

that's primarily why people are going to be visiting. It's just the fact that under the economic
models of our times, it doesn't work necessarily not to have any additional sales going on, it just
doesn't work for that site so...

Commissioner Harker: As you had said earlier this is, uh, fairly old, you know, language here,
and how do you modernize it without, you know, getting into some deep trouble? Because if we
do it with this one, my concern is having to try to do it with others. It just really negates our land
use ordinance and how it's presented. That's my only concern.

Mr. Alexander: Right. | understand your concern. | think it's a fair point. Um, I think, again,
though the applicant is entitled to rely upon the land ordinance that's in effect at the time the
application is submitted. So | think | think perhaps in the future, this may be an issue that needs
some follow up, and you know | appreciate your comments are very thoughtful and | share your
concern.

Commissioner Harker: Thank you so much.

Commissioner Carter: One question

Commissioner Hagle: | have another question too.

Mayor Newton: Okay, let's go to Commissioner Carter first.

Commissioner Carter: It sounds presumptive. Then he applied for gas station. Under the
general presumption that the town had included both. So, we can assume or use his words,
presumed that that is exactly what he was going after, because that was what the general
interpretation is in the way the ordinance has been interpreted over the years. So | think what
we've got from me, residents is they don't want a gasoline station there. | don't know what they
want there, but there is property rights too, hey are | don't know what they bought them but there
is property bikes too and | would say that when you ask a gas station. | don't know me around
here that have gas stations and like Mariana said don't sell anything a pack and they observe
there. So it's not just automotive stuff that's in the gas station, it's other stuff and can be and has
been

Mayor Newton: Commissioner Hagle?

Commissioner Hagle: Mr. Alexander, the definition we have for the gas station/service station.
The last phrase says and other similar services are rendered. How do you, what is... to me, that
could mean other services for vehicles, or other services of any kind. Is that how it's a very vague
language, and are you saying that that covers just about anything?

Mr. Alexander: Well, I hadn't really thought about it in those terms, | do agree that that is
perhaps a little bit vague or the definition. My understanding is that it's aimed more towards
automated automotive services. But at the same time, you know, we've got this, this argument on
the other side that, that convenience store is bad, but a gas station that has, you know, an oil

change facility or a tire changing facility H be permitted and be and be fine. | mean I'm sure
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that's not their position, but yeah that's what they're arguing, arguing basically so | mean are we

going to have a facility that has you know stalls where they change the tires and you hear the
loud wrenches going and we've got.....[inaudible] Right and that's what we have to do, that's what
we have to do. And the bottom line is at the end of the day, the applicant submitted an application
that is primarily for gas station, and there's some other things going on incident to that, but my
interpretation of North Carolina precedent indicates that due to strict construction of the zoning
ordinance, we have to construe it narrowly and, you know, it is appropriate to issue the permit for
the application has been submitted, because it doesn't, it doesn't prohibit these, these activities
incident to the gas station sale, the gas sale. I'm trying to be as clear as | can about that I'm sorry
if I'm not making myself clear.

Commissioner Hagle: Okay. You're making yourself clear.

Mayor Newton: Okay, so let's go to the roster and see where you think we are, we started off
with three topics this evening there has been some new information that has been provided.
There is no requirement for us to make a decision this evening, but we can. We certainly can if
that's the pleasure of the board. Commissioner Hollinshed, is there anything else within these
three topics that you want further information on? You're on mute.

Commissioner Hollinshed: | do not. There's nothing more that | think can be added to this at
this time.

Mayor Newton: Okay. Are you inclined to make a decision this evening?

Commissioner Hollinshed: | am.

Mayor Newton: Okay. Thank you. Commissioner Carter?

Commissioner Carter: I..I think I've been thoroughly confused by Mr. Alexander, but | think I'm
ready to make a decision.

Mayor Newton: Thank you. Commissioner McDonald?

Commissioner McDonald: | come in confused, I've been more confused, and at the present
time, I'm not ready to make a decision.

Mayor Newton: Okay. In which of those three areas do you need more information?

Commissioner McDonald: All three.

Mayor Newton: Okay. Commissioner Hagle?

Commissioner Hagle: We did have some questions about the traffic and the flow of traffic on
that lot, and | thought we might do a littlp~=2ye information about that.
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Mayor Newton: So, is your preference to do act on this this evening or the work session.

Commissioner Hagle: | just.... the traffic flow in and out a lot. And | think, at least one other
commissioner made those kind of comments, and | just think we could look at that a little more. |
would like to think about that a little bit more.

Mayor Newton: Okay. And Commissioner Harker?

Commissioner Harker: | think we've covered a lot of ground here. And | did, | was the one who
kind of wanted to take a look at that traffic impact a little bit closer. | appreciate the time that they
have spent going over it. | still, | stick by my guns by saying I did want to have an opportunity to
take a look at that a little bit more thoroughly because there is an impact there on Ocean that |
want to be very clear about before saying that's okay. So, | would prefer to delay that.

Mayor Newton: Okay. So | think there's a consensus to delay until the work session, specifically
for the traffic impacts.

Commissioner Harker: Yes, for me..

Mayor Newton: Mr. Grady, what are we missing before we clean this up?

Arey Grady: Yes, sir. The controlling statute certainly allows a reasonable time for the board to
make a decision, so you do not have to make it this evening. And with all things legal the term
reasonable time is not defined, | think the board would certainly be within its rights to make the
final decision at the next meeting. Mr. Mayor, | would suggest that the board be clear.. Is the
hearing going to be open for further evidence at the next meeting, or are we just going to
deliberate at the next meeting? | think the applicant and other interested individuals would want to
know.

Mayor Newton: And let's see what's the pleasure of the commissioners? Commissioner
Hollinshed?

Commissioner Hollinshed: Well, it sounds like the board wants to put this off until the work
session.

Mayor Newton: Correct. But do you want to close the public hearing portion or do you want to
keep that open in order to allow extra evidence, specifically on the topic of traffic impacts?

Commissioner Hollinshed: For me? Close.

Mayor Newton: Okay, thank you. Commissioner Carter?
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Commissioner Carter: Unless we need some clarity on the traffic pattern, no additional

evidence.

Mayor Newton: Thank you. Commissioner McDonald?

Commissioner McDonald: | would love to get some more information on the environmental
safety of the neighborhood and with the gas station being put in that neighborhood.

Mayor Newton: Well, the consensus of the board is just to focus on the traffic impacts, not, not
necessarily reopen the environmental impacts.

Commissioner McDonald: Okay, | understand that. Then we'll hear it at the work session.

Mayor Newton: Okay, and the question would be, do you want to close the public hearing or do
you want to do you want to keep it open to admit extra evidence?

Commissioner McDonald: We would want to keep it open.

Mayor Newton: Commissioner Hagle?

Commissioner Hagle: Leave it open, just on the traffic.

Mayor Newton: Okay, thank you. Commissioner Harker?

Commissioner Harker: On the traffic, fine, keep it open because we do have some questions
about it, so | don't want to necessarily think it's a final thing, it's just going to finalize some things |
think you would have to keep that open in order to do that.

Mayor Newton: Okay, that seems very clear. Now may | have a motion, please, to recess this
until the work session

Commissioner Hagle: So moved

Mayor Newton: A motion has been made. Is there any discussion? Let's go down the roster for
a vote. Commissioner Hollinshed?

Commissioner Hollinshed: Aye

Mayor Newton: Thank you, Commissioner Carter?

Commissioner Carter: Aye
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Mayor Newton: Thank you, Commissioner McDonald?

Commissioner McDonald: Aye

Mayor Newton: Thank you, Commissioner Hagle?

Commissioner Hagle: Aye

Mayor Newton: Alright, thank you. And Commissioner Harker?

Commissioner Harker: Aye

Commissioner Hagle made the motion to recess the hearing until the Work Session, with the
hearing to remain open only to consider additional information regarding traffic impacts of the
proposal. The motion passed unanimously.

Voting Yea: Commissioner Carter, Commissioner Hagle, Commissioner Harker, Commissioner
Hollinshed, Commissioner McDonald

Mayor/Commissioner Comments
Mayor Newton asked for Commissioner Comments.

Commissioner Hollinshed reminded everyone that on Saturday, September the 25th, household hazardous
waste will be collected by the county at the health department, and to gather all your insecticides and materials
that are labeled and you can take them out there and dispose of them.

Commissioner Carter said she would like to remind everybody that vaccinations are essential and the Broad
Street Clinic will be offering free vaccinations at the farmers market on Saturday from 9-1 and encouraged
anyone who isn’t vaccinated to do so. In addition, Commissioner Carter said that Facebook and social media
have been rampant with unfounded rumors about not only this particular issue [Jim Dandy proposal] but about
other proposed issues. She said that if you don't know what you're talking about, please don't put it on
Facebook as fact.

Commissioner McDonald had no comment.

Commissioner Hagle thanked the applicants submitting applications to fill the vacancy for the Parks and
Recreation Advisory Board. He said it's great to see that many citizens would like to serve, adding that there
were lots of very talented people. He encouraged applicants to submit applications for other boards and
committees as they become available. Commissioner Hagle shared how pleased he is to see all the streets
and sidewalks that are being installed, noting that there will probably continue to be some inconveniences from
time to time before its all said and done. He then shared his safety, health, and environmental comments,
sharing that he worked in an industry where safety, health, and the environment were very important. His
safety message was to focus on your driving, as there's fewer daylight hours. His health message was
encouraging people to get vaccinated if they’re not already, adding that we need to we need to get that done in
our country so that we can get back to regular order again. Lastly, he echoed Commissioner Hollinshed’s
earlier statements about the hazardous waste disposal effort with the county.
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Commissioner Harker welcomed and congratulated Mrs. Francis-Heckman on her appointment to the adviso

board for the Parks and Recreation. She then thanked all of the applicants that put their name into the pot to
serve. Lastly, she added that when it comes down to protecting you and your loved ones, the community is
really having some heartbreak, noting that with the [COVID] variant we are losing people, and increasingly
more patients hospitalized. She encouraged citizens to do whatever they need to do to protect themselves,
whether it be getting the vaccine, wearing a mast, or both as it could save a life.

Mayor Newton thanked the Board for its comments. He then reflected on the anniversary of 9/11 and thanked
first responders on that horrific day 20 years ago. He added that as a mayor, he has the opportunity to see the
professionalism of our first responders on a daily basis.

Adjourn

Motion made by Commissioner Hagle to adjourn the meeting.
Voting Yea: Commissioner Harker, Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Carter, Commissioner Hollinshed

Mayor Everette Newton

Deputy Town Clerk

Minutes prepared by Kate Allen.
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Town of Beaufort,
NC

701 Front St. - P.O. Box 390 - Beaufort, N.C.
28516 252-728-2141 - 252-728-3982 fax -
www.beaufortnc.org

Board of
Commissioners
Virtual Work
Session
4:00 PM - Monday, Oct. 25,
2021

AGENDA CATEGORY: Items for Discussion and Consideration
SUBJECT: Minutes

REQUESTED ACTION: Consider approval of the minutes as presented for the October 11,
2021 BOC Regular Meeting.

EXPECTED LENGTH OF PRESENTATION:
1 minute

SUBMITTED BY:

Elizabeth Lewis, Town Clerk
BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED:
No
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Town of Beaufort, NC
701 Front St. - P.O. Box 390 - Beaufort, N.C. 28516
252-728-2141 - 252-728-3982 fax - www.beaufortnc.org

Town of Beaufort Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting
6:00 PM Monday, October 11, 2021 - Zoom due to the COVID-19 Pandemic
Minutes

Call to Order

Mayor Newton called the meeting to order.
Roll Call

Elizabeth Lewis, Town Clerk, called the roll.
PRESENT

Mayor Newton
Commissioner Carter
Commissioner Hagle
Commissioner Harker
Commissioner Hollinshed
Commissioner McDonald

Agenda Approval
Mayor Newton asked if there was a motion to approve the agenda.

Commissioner Hollinshed requested to add an additional item to the agenda regarding the Wine and Food
Tent.

Mayor Newton suggested this item be added on the agenda as number six, under items for discussion and
consideration.

Commissioner Hagle made a motion to approve the agenda as amended.

Voting Yes: Commissioner Hagle, Commissioner Hollinshed, Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Harker,
Commissioner Carter

Presentations

1. Plastic Free by the Sea

o

Douglas Doubleday who resides at 114 al Pines Court in Beaufort, gave the presentation.
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Mr. Doubleday informed the audience he is a current member of The Croatan Group of the Sie

Club, which has recently developed a sub-group called, Plastic Free by the Sea. He referenced
an article written by Mayor Newton in the Town’s March 2021 newsletter that suggested a culture
change was the answer to the trash on the streets and waterways. Mr. Doubleday said, Plastic
Free by the Sea has a mission to help reduce the amount of single use plastics that are entering
oceans, sounds and estuaries; as these plastic materials degrade into microplastics, which have
unfortunately become pervasive throughout the world’s oceans, sounds and rivers. He also
shared that the average human consumption of these microplastics is equal to a credit card piece
of plastic each week and can remain in the organs long-term. Mr. Doubleday said microplastics
and microfibers have also been found in the sewage waters flowing into treatment plants,
indicating humans are consuming measurable amounts of these materials. He shared that
Rebecca Drohan, Waterkeeper of Coastal Carolina Riverwatch, received a grant from the state
and has recently initiated a Water Quality for Fisheries Program (WQ4F), Water Quality for
Fisheries Program (WQA4F), that among other actions will be measuring the amount of plastic in
our local waters. Mr. Doubleday said they would like to work with the Town of Beaufort and other
organizations and businesses, on an initiative to change the culture of single use plastics in our
community and local area; we will expand our efforts as we gain credibility and corporation, much
as we did during the “Don’t Drill NC” program, that became so successful in Beaufort and across
all of North Carolina. Mr. Doubleday shared a video (link: https://youtube/iO3SA4YyEYU) that
summarized the worldwide single use plastic problem. He suggested one way to proceed in
working together is for the Town to publish regular informational public service articles from,
Plastic Free by the Sea, in the monthly newsletter. Another way could be for the town to
recognize the growing number of local businesses obtaining OFE certifications, which stands for
Ocean Friendly Establishment. On behalf of the group, Plastic Free by the Sea, Mr. Doubleday
encouraged the Town and others to adopt OFE practices.

Mayor Newton asked if there were any questions or comments on the presentation.

Commissioner Hagle said it was a good presentation; it was a tough problem that has been
around a long time, with a lot of pieces.

Commissioner Hollinshed said it was an interest of hers, but she did not have any comments.
Commissioner McDonald had no comments.

Commissioner Harker said it was a great presentation, littering and marine debris is definitely
something that is preventable. Messaging is a good way to start, and she liked the idea of getting
that information out to the citizens.

Commissioner Carter said it was a good presentation, that it is a problem, and they will try to help
anyway they can.

Public Comment
Mayor Newton asked if there was anybody signed up for public comment.
There was one person; Harriet Altman, 103 Leonda Drive in Beaufort.

Ms. Altman said she was on the committee with Doug Doubleday. She thanked the Commissioners for the
opportunity they had given him to present. She expressed her desire to have the Commissioners and Town
partner with them in efforts to have a larger impact, working together. Ms. Altman said she had spoke with
Mayor Newton before, and she knew that the Commissioners and many Beaufort residents were very
concerned about our environment. She added that it would be great for Beaufort to be a Town known for their
dedication in protecting waterways, wildlife and encouraging others to do so as well. She pointed out, the Town
is growing expediently, and it is a critical time to set an example for what they stand for, by having a message
to guide the visitors and influence people to change the culture of this issue.
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Manager Report

Town Manager, John Day, reported the Town had hired 4 new employees since the last meeting. New
employees are as follows: Elizabeth Lewis, Town Clerk; Cherelle Vann, Utility Building Specialist; Aaron Winn,
Maintenance Technician; Brandon Ellison, Maintenance Technician.

Manager Day reported that the dredge did arrive from the Corp of Engineers and finished up the project at
Bulkhead Channel on October 10, 2021.

Manager Day informed the group of a public meeting on October 14, 2021, at 6:00 p.m., regarding the Land
Use Plan. He encouraged everyone who can participate to do so, as the Land Use Plan is very important, and
reminded them the link to the meeting was on the Town’s website, under the calendar section.

Mayor Newton asked if there were any questions or comments.
Commissioner Hagle had no comments.

Commissioner Hollinshed asked, in reference to the Manager’s Report sent out the week prior, if there was any
kind of schedule for the paving of the road by the property next to Food Lion.

Manager Day said the contract is valid, but they are waiting to hear from the contractor regarding a date they
are going to start the job, hopefully it will be soon. He added this will be an opportunity for the road to be
named by the Board of Commissioners.

Commissioner Hollinshed also asked for clarification between the CAMA Land Use Plan and the LDO, as
many people think they are one in the same.

Manager Day responded by explaining currently the Town has a Land Development Ordinance that is going to
be replaced by something called a Unified Development Ordinance, which takes all those ordinances that have
to do with the way land is developed, the Subdivision Ordinance for example, and complies it together in one
place. Those are the regulatory documents that explain zoning, setbacks, and other details regarding
development. The CAMA Land Use Plan itself is an overall guiding document, it has some aspirational
elements to it, as things that are hoped to be achieve in upcoming years. It states the hopes of the land use
plan, what the Town will end up looking like in the upcoming years; this one will also include a resilience
section. Manager Day added the Town did receive a grant from the Department of Environmental Quality, so
there can be a focus on resilience as it relates to the environment.

Commissioner Hollinshed asked if somebody would explain this again at the beginning of the public meeting.
Manager Day said absolutely, he would make sure that happens.

Commissioner McDonald had no comments.

Commissioner Harker had no comments.

Commissioner Carter had no comments.

Items of Consent

1. Minutes

Rachel Johnson, Deputy Clerk, informed the Mayor and Commissioners that the agenda
included minutes from the September 13" and 27" meetings, as well as the June 14" and
28" meetings. Ms. Johnson said the September dates needed to be removed from the items
of consent.

Mayor Newton asked if there was a motion to approve the items of consent.

Commissioner Hagle made a motion to approve the items of consent.
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Voting Yes: Commissioner Hagle, Commissioner Hollinshed, Commissioner McDonald,

Commissioner Harker, Commissioner Carter

Items for Discussion and Consideration

1.

COVID Numbers in Carteret County, Mask Ordinance Discussion, Returning to In-Person
Meetings, Employee Emergency Medical Leave Check-In

Mayor Newton reported that currently Carteret County had 179 active COVID cases, an active
positivity rate of 8.8% and 12 hospitalizations; North Carolina’s active positivity rate was 7.75%

Mayor Newton suggested the best method to discuss returning to in-person meetings would be
going down the roster to hear from each Commissioner.

Commissioner Hagle said he would like to establish a date to return to in-person meetings, as
many other organizations have already returned. He suggested they establish protocol to ensure
everyone who attends is safe. He said he really felt it was time to set a target date to return to in-
person meetings and suggested the hybrid option be available as well.

Mayor Newton reminded the Commissioners that the Board of Education has set a 5% active
positivity rate as the benchmark for dropping their mask mandate.

Commissioner Hagle said he would still like to establish a target date; guidelines of social
distancing can be followed.

Manager Day informed the group that he contacted the group that is going to be setting up the
Train Depot for the hybrid meetings, he has not heard back from them regarding a setup date but
will pass that information along as soon as he is made aware.

Commissioner Hollinshed said she would like to see the target go to November and keep an eye
on the numbers. She added that the 5% also includes a large portion of ages 12 and under that
cannot be vaccinated. She said she would like to work towards a target and the remote option.
Commissioner Hollinshed also added she would like to see the Town wide mask mandate
removed or examined. She added she thinks mask are very effective and those who choice to
wear one will, but those who do not are causing some issues with businesses.

Mayor Newton said he would circle back to the mask mandate topic after they finished discussing
in-person meetings.

Commissioner McDonald said he went along with discussing it at November’s meeting.

Commissioner Harker said she thought they needed to start discussing getting back to into face-
to-face meetings, but she pointed out this would be translated down to some of the volunteer
boards. She said they needed to come up with a plan because some of the boards would be
talking about topics where there would be a lot of people that will want to gather; it would be hard
to accommodate the larger groups some of these subjects will bring.

Commissioner Carter said while she agrees that getting back is something to aspire to, there is
still an active rate of about 7-8%; which is still pretty high. She said they were not getting a great
deal of cooperation with the mask mandate, but they needed to look carefully before leaping, as
winter is coming, and a lot of people are going to be inside which could possibly increase the rate.
She added they needed to be careful getting back into open meetings.

Mayor Newton said they would certainly discuss this again at the October Work Session, and
moved on to discuss the Employee Emergency Medical Leave Check-In.

Commissioner Hagle said he still agrees that the leave should only apply to the people who are
vaccinated.

Commissioner Hollinshed said she agrees, those who are vaccinated can participate.
Commissioner McDonald said yes.
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Commissioner Harker said she thought they should keep it in place and asked Manager Day if

this being in place had acted as an incentive for anyone to take the vaccine and if so, have we
made it available for the staff that want to take it.

Manager Day said he had one employee who said he would have taken the vaccine had he
known this was in place, even though the information was made available to all employees. He
added he thought it was a good thing to continue, because he knows there are several people
who have gotten the vaccine since it was put in place.

Commissioner Carter said to leave it in place because she thought they needed to do everything
possible to keep their people safe.

Mayor Newton moved to the Mask Ordinance Discussion.

Commissioner Hagle said he agreed with Commissioner Hollinshed, some people are wearing
the mask, some are not, depending on where you go. He said he was neutral on the topic and
could go either way.

Commissioner Hollinshed said she thought it should be examined at the work session, as
mentioned the flu season is coming soon and the mask do protect from airborne particles. She
added she wore one and that it was her choice, to protect the people she is around.

Commissioner McDonald said because they are making decisions about the mask mandate, they
should be the first to follow the rules in place.

Commissioner Harker said she thought they should lift the mandate; she was fine with putting the
mandate in at the time, when there were more triggers, and the transmission rate was at 16%
with a tremendous amount of deaths. She added those numbers have cut in half and the deaths
have reduced from the time the mandate was put into place. She said personal responsibility is
going to have to take place at this point in time. She also stated that people are beginning to wear
their mask appropriately and those who do not wish to do so, that is by their choice, but at this
point the mandate is not going to yield the results in which we think it should, causing more divide
than it is compliance.

Commissioner Carter said she would have to agree with Commissioner Harker, and at this point
she would recommend taking away the mandate.

Mayor Newton said there was a consensus to repeal the mask mandate and asked for a motion in
that effect.

Commissioner Hagle made the motion to repeal the mask mandate and added their should be a
date established.

Commissioner Carter and Commissioner Harker both responded with immediately.

Commissioner Hagle amended the motion to include, repeal of the mask mandate, effective
immediately.

Voting Yes: Commissioner Hagle, Commissioner Hollinshed, Commissioner McDonald,
Commissioner Harker, Commissioner Carter

Traffic Calming Turner & Broad Streets

Sam Bell, Assistant Town Engineer, explained how increased traffic and the wearing down
of existing pedestrian crossings presented a potential problem at Turner & Broad Street. Mr.
Bell offered two options for the traffic calming at the intersection. These options were a
raised crosswalk, or a four-way stop. Similar in both options were: remarking the four
crossings, providing warning signs incoming traffic and rumble strips. Mr. Bell also
mentioned the option of relocating the driveway that exits on Broad Street, into the
courthouse area. He said these combined elements will help increase pedestrian visibility as
well as slowing incoming traffic, creating a safer area.
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Mayor Newton thanked Mr. Bell for the presentation and asked the Commissioners if there
were any questions or comments.

Commissioner Hagle said he did not like the four-way stop because traffic will back up in
front of the courthouse, causing a potential problem. He said that he did like the marked
crosswalks, and he thought the bump outs would help greatly. He added that he didn’t
particularly like the raised crosswalks, but it was probably the best option to slow traffic
down, unless they wanted to try it with just the marked crosswalks and bump outs. Between
the two options, the raised crosswalk was his choice.

Commissioner Hollinshed said she liked the raised crosswalk, not the four-way stop. She
said she wondered if the plan was depended on the participation of the county for it to come
to fruition. She suggested having some sort of sighage that was eye-catching would be
beneficial, maybe a flashing warning light or something to that effect.

Commissioner McDonald said he was confused on the intent of this; was it to redirect or
slow traffic down. He added what works to slow vehicle traffic might not work to slow
pedestrian traffic, especially with US Highway 70 being so close to the area. He said he did
not think either one of the options would be effective; he suggested it needed some more
studying because whatever is done there will cause a backup somewhere else. He asked if
the goal was to redirect, slow or stop traffic.

Mr. Bell said it was a busy intersection that caused a bottleneck when it was busy. He said
the courthouse driveway did present a lot of problems because it is so close to the
intersection itself; moving it would help with the flow of traffic. He said the main goals for the
project include improving pedestrian safety and maintaining better traffic flow with safe
speeds. He added that another option with the driveway, depending entirely on Carteret
County’s involvement, would be turning the driveway into “one way” out, which should help
the flow of traffic.

Commissioner McDonald said he had no more questions.

Commissioner Harker said she liked option one, without the four stop signs. She also said
she liked the fact that no matter what happens, improvements will be made to pedestrian
walkways because that needs to be done. She had some concerns about the raised
crosswalk, that they may slow traffic too much and suggested an analysis of those be
conducted. She asked if there were any kind of temporary bumps that could be put there to
test the theory before it is made permanent.

Mr. Bell said he could certainly look into that; he would check with Greg and Mark at Public
Works to see if anything is currently available or if there was something they could
purchase.

Commissioner Carter said she did not like the four-way stop option, it would create a bottle
neck area and it is already a problem when court is released. She liked the idea of having
the crosswalks marked clearly and thought it would offer a big help. She said moving the
driveway into the courthouse could help but she wouldn’t want to do anything to disturb the
trees. She added that a temporary raised crosswalk might be helpful on Turner Street, but
she did not think it would be needed on Broad Street.

Mayor Newton recapped the discussion, specifically the questions about the temporary
raised crosswalk, and asked if there was a consensus to allow Sam to do a little more
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research, reach out to the Public Works division and then report back at the work session, in
hopes they could then finalize a plan.

Commissioner Hagle suggested trying a regular crosswalk, versus a raised crosswalk, and
said that the bump out areas will calm traffic down because of the reduction of about a foot.
He also said the crosswalks should be marked regardless; but the slight reduction of road
width in a couple areas is a good way to remedy the problem without any other kind of
devices. He added he did not think added some type of barrier would show you anything.

Commissioner Hollinshed said she would like to see how the rumble strips worked, if they
would slow traffic enough, and mark the intersections better.

Commissioner Hagle said one other option would be to temporarily not install the new curb
and gutter on the south side of that intersection, and just put a crosswalk there with the curb
and gutter as it is. He said that might slow it down and you could always come back and
add the curb, gutter and raised crosswalk if that does not work. He added that it would not
change the width of the road any, it would just mark the crosswalk with some warning signs
to please slow down.

Commissioner Carter said to remember when you turn with that bump out, it is throwing
traffic further into the road itself.

Commissioner Hagle said he was suggesting do not put the raised crosswalk, just mark the
current crosswalk.

Commissioner Carter said she was talking about the bump outs.

Commissioner Hagle said the bump outs are needed for pedestrian traffic at that
intersection; hopefully the county will make that little change in the road.

Commissioner Carter said when you are coming around that corner, it throws your vehicle
out further into the traffic lanes; so that needs to be kept in mind when considering those
bump outs, same going the other way.

Commissioner McDonald said he thought the county was satisfied with the way it is now; he
did not hear them complaining about how it functions in those areas. He said he thought
Beaufort needed to look at this closely, as the area consisted of the courthouse, churches,
and the food market; which many of those people walk to and from those places. He again
asked what the intent was at the intersection.

Mayor Newton responded that the intent is to slow down traffic through there and to
increase pedestrian and bicycle safety, as there have been multiple reports of people going
through the intersection at a high speed.

Commissioner Harker referred to her original comments; the pedestrian part needs to be
done and there can be some temporary things done without having to spend a lot of money.
She said even though the bump outs are only a few feet, it could help slow some of the
traffic down. She asked Mr. Bell about the bump out by the courthouse and if the county did
not want to move the driveway, was it an absolute deal breaker for the bump out landing to
go across to the other side.
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Mr. Bell said it would be really nice to be able to do it, because the way it is not the driveway
covers up some of the sidewalk. He said the bump out would not change the parking lot at
all, it just changes ingress.

Commissioner Harker said it does seem like the driveway is encroaching on the sidewalk.
She said the pedestrian portion definitely needs to be done. If some of the bump outs could
be placed on both sides to slow traffic, the raised crosswalks might not be necessary, and
the rate of which traffic flows could be monitored in the meantime. She said the rumble
strips could be another way of alerting drivers, as well as strategically placing signage in the
area.

Mr. Bell added there are a few raised crosswalks in Beaufort already; from his observation,
they have made a difference. He also said with this particular design, there are already a lot
of elements that could help with traffic calming, like the bump outs and the warnings; the
raised crosswalks would be for a maximum effect.

Commissioner Carter said again, be careful when you put the bump out there because
when you have all that traffic exiting the courthouse they are going to stack up in one corner
and it will really slow the flow of traffic. She said the raised area works good as long as it is
marked well; no four-way stops please.

Mayor Newton said it sounded like the consensus was to move forward with the pedestrian
measures in place and no raised crosswalk.

Commissioner Hagle made a motion to that effect.
Commissioner Hollinshed said she would like to add the rumble strips to the motion.
Commissioner Hagle added the placement of rumble strips to the original motion.

Commissioner McDonald said he has not heard any complaints about the area they have
been discussing. He expressed concerns about other areas where traffic needs to be
slowed down, such as Pine and Mulberry Street. He said they needed to be consistent with
these type of actions throughout the whole Town.

Mayor Newton reminded Commissioner McDonald there was an enormous amount of time
spent discussing the speed bumps on Pine Street and the one way exit on the west end of
Pine Street as well.

Voting Yes: Commissioner Hagle, Commissioner Hollinshed, Commissioner Harker,
Commissioner Carter

Voting No: Commissioner McDonald

Water Rate Adjustment — Eastman Creek Subdivision

Greg Meshaw, Public Services Director/Town Engineer, presented the proposed water rate
reduction at Eastman Creek Landing subdivision. He gave some history on the rates,
discussing how the Carteret County Board of Commissioners adopted new county water
rates on June 21, 2021, rates jumped 95% from the previous year and this is relevant
because the Town of Beaufort buys water from the county and then they resell it in
Eastman’s Creek. Mr. Meshaw explained how this change would affect the Town, going
from an estimated $6,600 surplus to a $23.000 deficit. He reminded the board they asked
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for a break-even rate for customers and at the August 23, 2021 Work Session, the volume
charge remained the same at $7.61 per 1,000 and the based fee was raised to $33.80.
Since then, the rates have been reduced by 25%, as the Carteret County Board of
Commissioners voted to do this in their September 20, 2021 meeting. Mr. Meshaw said with
that recent change, they feel it may be worth considering passing the savings along to the
customers in Eastman Creek. Mr. Meshaw said the proposed rate for customers was a base
fee of $23.25, with no change in the volume charge. He said this should allow a continued
break-even point for selling and distributing the water. Mr. Meshaw said in addition to the
proposed lower rates for the ¥%-inch meter hookup, he also asked the board to consider
establishing rates for the larger meters, incase they were needed in the future; these rates
are as follows: 1-inch, $38.37; 1 % -inch, $82.96; 2-inch, $147.25; 3-inch, $333.91.

Mayor Newton went down the roster to see if there were any questions.

Commissioner Hagle had no questions but said he liked the proposed change, as it would
help people who lived in that subdivision. He said he also liked the additional of the four
larger meter sizes.

Commissioner Hollinshed had no questions and said she agreed with the comments of
Commissioner Hagle.

Commissioner McDonald had no questions.

Commissioner Harker said she agreed with the decrease and thanked staff for looking
towards the future as far as added in rates for the larger meter sizes.

Commissioner Carter had no questions and said she felt it was appropriate.

Commissioner Hagle made a motion to approve the proposed rates.

Voting Yes: Commissioner Hagle, Commissioner Hollinshed, Commissioner McDonald,
Commissioner Harker, Commissioner Carter

To approve or deny the Site Plan for Pruitt Health Care Nursing Home/Skilled Care Facility
to contain 104 Beds/Units.

Kyle Garner, Planning & Inspections Director, presented the request and informed the board
that staff has been working on this project for well over three years. Mr. Garner explained
that the 70,980 square foot facility would be a skilled care nursing home, and said it was
important to note that this is phase one of at least two phases. He said there is a request for
sewer allocation in the amount of 12,480 gallons per day. He also touched on some
questions regarding parking; based on the current parking requirement, there would be 35
spaces, when considering only the number of beds. He added that you would also have to
equate the number of staff that would be working, right now, that would be one space for
every two people. He pointed out that is hard to calculate right now because it would
suggest there would only be 30 people working at the facility at one time; based off the
initial conversations had, it is believed that there would be more workers than that in total.
Mr. Garner said when you take into account that it is going to be a rehabilitation facility,
people will be coming in and out during the day for rehab work; we can see where the
increase in parking is also going to be a possible asset. Mr. Garner mentioned again, this is
the first phase in what is going to be a two-phase project; meaning all the parking may not
be needed in the second phase, based on what is updated in the first phase. He also said
there were some questions about the road—eanfiguration. Mr. Garner explained that the
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engineer worked with the Department of Transportation, and they made recommendations

as to what needed to be done. He said he believed the engineers and their staff have done
all they needed to, ensuring the criteria of the Town’s standards, as set forth in the Land
Development Ordinance; other departments on the technical review committee have
reviewed this and we do recommend approval of the project, as well as the Planning Board.

Mayor Newton went down the roster for questions and comments.

Commissioner Hagle said he was probably the one who talked about the parking lot the last
time they discussed this; he pointed out 50 parking spaces was calculated but they are
requesting 138 spaces. He said he did not realize they had a rehab facility and that the
calculations may be right, it just seems like a lot of parking spaces for the size. He also
pointed out this is a low area, near water, and that he was concerned with stormwater,
where it goes and the quality of water that gets into the nearby streams and oceans. He
said that were his concerns, and he stills has a few, but thanked Mr. Garner for helping him
understand more about the parking.

Commissioner Hollinshed said she thought the facility would be a real benefit to Beaufort,
she hoped they approve it and did not have any questions.

Commissioner McDonald said he had no questions and that he was glad to see something
like this come to Beaufort, on this side of the bridge.

Commissioner Harker said she had no questions but elaborated on the fact that the
stormwater retention pond will be sufficient to handle future growth and that was answered
during the work group session. She also said she would love to see the facility take shape in
Beaufort.

Commissioner Carter said she had no questions and would rather see too much parking
than not enough.

Commissioner Harker made a motion to approve as presented, with the sewer allocation
request.

Commissioner Carter asked if the allocation was only for the 104 beds and not the addition.
Mr. Garner responded that was correct, just for the 104 beds.

Commissioner Harker added they would have to come back to the board for anything
additional.

Voting Yes: Commissioner Hagle, Commissioner Hollinshed, Commissioner McDonald,
Commissioner Harker, Commissioner Carter

Case #21-24 Final Plat — Front Street Village Phase 4

Mr. Garner presented the request and acknowledged that the board has seen this item several
times within the last few months. He said this would allow the actual recordation of the final plat
and the selling of individual lots; our subdivision Ordinance allows developers or individuals to bond
incomplete infrastructure. Mr. Garner explained in this particular case, there are 34 lots at 10.44
acres, the amount of the bond for the infrastructure is $594,112.50 and Mr. Meshaw has reviewed
that number. Mr. Garner said the sewer allacation is not being requested, because it was covered
46




3.

before the policy went into effect. He added that this project will have to pay recreation fees in t

amount of $5,875.20; this is something subdivisions pay a fee of in lieu of providing space. He said
this money will go into a specific account to fund infrastructure for recreation. Mr. Garner ended by
stating, at their September 20" Planning Board Meeting, the board did vote unanimously to
recommend approval of this final plat

Mayor Newton went down the roster to see if there were any questions or comments.

Commissioner Hagle recommended Mr. Garner mention the streets and infrastructure would be
private and maintained by the HOA.

Mr. Garner responded that he believed there were draft covenants of that included in the packets.

Commissioner Hagle added he liked the design; it was from the standpoint of protecting the
wetlands as much as possible.

Mayor Newton confirmed with Mr. Garner that private did not mean gated, rather than taking care
of matters via the HOA.

Mr. Garner confirmed that was correct.

Commissioner Hagle added that it is not gated but it is private streets.

Commissioner Hollinshed had no questions.

Commissioner McDonald had no questions.

Commissioner Harker asked when the Town would receive the $5,875.20 recreation fees.

Mr. Garner said that is a good question; he explained the developer would need to pay those fees
before the plat could be recorded at the courthouse. He added that this system is in place to ensure
the person is not making money before paying all associated fees of the project.

Commissioner Carter said she thought it was great and was glad to see the pervious surface.

Commissioner Hagle made a motion to approval the request, including the bond request.

Voting Yes: Commissioner Hagle, Commissioner Hollinshed, Commissioner McDonald,
Commissioner Harker, Commissioner Carter

Wine and Food Tent

Commissioner Hollinshed discussed the added item by sharing she thought Wine and Food
Board did an excellent job with the event, and that the money raised went to the Carteret County
Schools Foundation. She said she has no problem with the use of it, but she suggested
discussing some tent parameters at the next work session. She added that it was a real hardship
on merchants with that tent up Thursday-Monday. She said she hoped they could come up with a
method that worked for everyone.

Commissioner Hagle said he thought it would be great to discuss it at the work session.

Commissioner McDonald had no comments.
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Commissioner Harker said she agreed and that she heard concerns from the businesses. She

added that she believed the tent was up and functioning until Friday, but it could have certainly
been taken down sooner. She ended by saying it would be good to discuss it for future reference.

Commissioner Carter said it needed to be discussed; also, something to consider is whether it
means a penalty on the tent company for not removing it in time.

Mayor Newton said the tent discussion would be added to October’'s Work Session items.

Mayor/Commissioner Comments

Commissioner Hagle welcomed Elizabeth Lewis as the new Town Clerk, stating it was great to have her on
board. He thanked Rachel Johnson and others for helping to get the meetings up to date. He also said he
hoped something could be put into place to have the minutes from the previous meeting at the following
meeting, so they do not get behind. He said it was great to see all of the progress being made on Cedar Street
and other work on sidewalks and the repaving of Lennoxville Road. He added that it was great to see the
reduction of the water rates at Eastman Creek and reminded citizens that Beaufort does not own or control that
water plant; they only purchase water from the County. He explained the Town bills the customer for water and
sewer. He also said it was great to see that the Pruitt Health Facility is coming to fruition. Commissioner Hagle
ended with a safety message to all: Traffic around Beaufort and the County continues to be busier than ever,
when you are out and about, focus on your driving; remember even at 40 mph, you travel 59 feet a second,
which is the length of about two vehicles.

Commissioner Hollinshed welcomed Ms. Lewis as well, stating she hoped that she continued with the Town for
a while. She thanked the people who were involved in the candidate forum and reminded the group of the
online links where the sessions could be reviewed. She ended with a reminder that Halloween on Ann Street
was coming, and the Town was not involved with this event.

Commissioner McDonald said he hoped those in the Ann Street area participated as normal and reminded
everyone to be mindful of the children walking around during that time.

Commissioner Harker thanked Ms. Lewis for jumping on board and looked forward to the minutes being caught
up. She also welcomed all the other new employees that have been added recently and said it was great to
have them as part of the team. She reminded everyone to be careful during the Halloween festivities. She
commended the Town on their infrastructure work and encouraged others to ride around and look at the great
work that has been done. She ended by saying that it is nice to see some of the infrastructure work of the
comprehensive plan finally taking shape.

Commissioner Carter welcomed all four new employees. She reminded the group that vaccinations are still
being given and added if you received the Pfizer shot and it had been eight months, you are eligible for a
booster. She added that Broad Street Clinic would be back at the Beaufort Farmers Market on October 30™
with Pfizer boosters.

Adjourn

Commissioner Hagle made a motion to adjourn.

Voting Yes: Commissioner Hagle, Commissioner Hollinshed, Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Harker,
Commissioner Carter
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Mayor Everette S. (Rett) Newton

Elizabeth Lewis, Town Clerk
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Town of Beaufort,
NC

701 Front St. - P.O. Box 390 - Beaufort, N.C.
28516 252-728-2141 - 252-728-3982 fax -
www.beaufortnc.org

Board of Commissioners
Virtual Work Session
4:00 PM - Monday, Oct. 25, 2021

AGENDA CATEGORY: Items for Discussion and Consideration
SUBJECT: 2022 Board of Commissioners Meeting Dates

REQUESTED ACTION: Accept the proposed BOC meeting dates for 2022. Please be
aware, there is one conflict that effects the Work Session date in December, as it falls
during the Christmas holiday break.

EXPECTED LENGTH OF PRESENTATION:
1 minute

SUBMITTED BY:
Elizabeth Lewis, Town Clerk

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED:
No
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TOWN OF BEAUFORT
BOARD OF COMMISSIONER
2022 MEETING DATES

Regular Monthly Meeting
2"4 Monday, unless otherwise noted

January 10, 2022
February 14, 2022
March 14, 2022
April 11, 2022
May 9, 2022
June 13, 2022
July 11, 2022
August 8, 2022
September 12, 2022
October 10, 2022
November 14, 2022
December 12, 2022

Time: 6:00 pm
Location: TBD
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Monthly Work Session
4* Monday, unless otherwise noted

January 24, 2022
February 28, 2022
March 28, 2022
April 25, 2022
May 23, 2022
June 27, 2022
July 25, 2022
August 22, 2022
September 26, 2022
October 24, 2022
November 28, 2022

December 19, 2022 (3" Monday due
to holidays)

Time: 4:00 pm
Location: TBD



Town of Beaufort, NC

Board of Commissioners
Virtual Work Session Meeting
4:00 PM Monday, October 25, 2021

AGENDA CATEGORY: Items for Discussion and Consideration
SUBJECT: Repeal of Demolition Ordinance - 400 Pollock Street

BRIEF SUMMARY:

Some time ago the Board of Commissioners adopted a demolition ordinance for the
structure located at 400 Pollock Street.

The demolition of the structure was postponed a number of times in anticipation of the
property being purchased by Preservation North Carolina (PNC). PNC purchased and
marketed the property, and a buyer, which must rehabilitate the structure, is scheduled to
close on the purchase of the property on Tuesday, October 26.

The closing attorney has stated that in order for the closing to occur, the demolition
ordinance must be repealed prior to the actual closing.

Town Attorney Arey Grady is working with the closing attorney to prepare the repeal of the
demolition order, but that document was not available in time to be included with the agenda
package. It will be provided as soon as it is available.

REQUESTED ACTION:
Adopt ordinance repealing the demolition order for 400 Pollock Street.

EXPECTED LENGTH OF PRESENTATION:
5 minutes

SUBMITTED BY:
John Day, Town Manager

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED:
No
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AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL AND RESCIND THE ORDER OF DEMOLITION OF IMPROVEMENTS
LOCATED AT 400 POLLOCK STREET IN THE TOWN OF BEAUFORT, NORTH CAROLINA

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Beaufort heretofore adopted an
Ordinance directing and ordering the demolition of the improvements located at 400 Pollock

Street, Beaufort, North Carolina; and,

WHEREAS, since the adoption of the aforesaid Ordinance, the owners of the property
therein described have remediated the conditions giving rise to the aforesaid Ordinance; and,
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Beaufort desire to repeal and

rescind the Ordinance previously adopted.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED THAT THE ORDINANCE (AND ORDER ADOPTED
THEREIN) DATED MARCH 11, 2019, AND RECORDED IN BOOK 1662, PAGE 427 IN THE OFFICE OF
THE REGISTER OF DEEDS OF CARTERET COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA IS HEREBY REPEALED AND
RESCINDED IN ITS ENTIRETY.

ADOPTED THIS DAY OF , 2021.

TOWN OF BEAUFORT

BY:

EVERETTE S. NEWTON, MAYOR

ATTEST:

RACHEL JOHNSON, DEPUTY TOWN CLERK
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STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF CARTERET

l, , a Notary Public for the County and State
aforesaid, certify that Everette S. Newton, Mayor of the Town of Beaufort, personally appeared
before me this day and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing instrument, and that Rachel
Johnson, Deputy Town Clerk, attested the same and caused the Town Seal to be placed hereon,
all by authority duly given.

WITNESS my hand and official stamp (or seal), this day of ,2021.

Signature of Notary Public

Printed Name of Notary Public

My commission expires:
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Town of Beaufort, NC

Board of Commissioners
Virtual Work Session Meeting
4:00 PM Monday, October 25, 2021

AGENDA CATEGORY: Items for Discussion and Consideration
SUBJECT: Wastewater Treatment Capacity & Allocation Update

BRIEF SUMMARY:

A presentation about wastewater treatment capacity will be made. It will cover how
treatment capacity allocated to proposed projects is tracked, the actual capacity being
utilized, and the percentage of unused capacity committed to projects not yet started as well
as those which are started but not yet complete.

REQUESTED ACTION:
None

EXPECTED LENGTH OF PRESENTATION:
25 minutes

SUBMITTED BY:
Greg Meshaw, Public Services Director/Town Engineer

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED:
No

55




Town of Beaufort, NC

701 Front St. - P.O. Box 390 - Beaufort, N.C. 28516
252-728-2141 - 252-728-3982 fax - www.beaufortnc.org

Board of Commissioners
Virtual Work Session
4:00 PM - Monday, Oct. 25, 2021

AGENDA CATEGORY: Items for Discussion and Consideration
SUBJECT: BDA Holiday Events

REQUESTED ACTION: Placeholder for event applications from the Beaufort Development
Association. The BDA has begun advertising holiday events, but has not submitted event
applications for staff review and BOC approval. Staff has reached out and asked for 3
applications to be submitted in order to follow Town ordinances, safety and insurance
requirements and to allow staff time to schedule workloads associated with the activities.

3 event applications need to be submitted for the following BDA advertised activities.

1) Christmas Parade
2) Christmas Tree lighting/Santa house/other holiday activities on Town property
3) New Year’s Eve fire pits and pirate drop

EXPECTED LENGTH OF PRESENTATION:
5 minutes

SUBMITTED BY:
Rachel Johnson, Event Coordinator
BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED: No
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Town of Beaufort, NC

701 Front St. - P.O. Box 390 - Beaufort, N.C. 28516
252-728-2141 - 252-728-3982 fax - www.beaufortnc.org

Board of Commissioners
Virtual Work Session
4:00 PM - Monday, Oct. 25, 2021

AGENDA CATEGORY: Items for Discussion and Consideration
SUBJECT: Tents in the Parking Lot

REQUESTED ACTION: Provide direction to staff and consider changes to the event
policy/tent permitting process.

Commissioner Hollinshed asked staff to bring this item to the Board for discussion.

A recent event in downtown Beaufort was approved to close the West Parking lot for 4 days
in order to put up a tent for an event. They were approved to set up on Wednesday and the
parking lot was to remain closed through Saturday afternoon. The original permitted event
involved an activity on Thursday and Friday with the tent to be removed on Saturday.

As the event drew near, the Friday activity was canceled by the organizers. The event
organizers scheduled with the tent company to install the tent on Wednesday and to have it
removed on Friday.

On Friday, the tent company informed the event organizers that they could not remove it on
Friday as scheduled but would remove it on Saturday. This did not pose a significant issue
as the permit from the Town was valid through Saturday.

However on Saturday, staff contacted the event organizers after receiving numerous phone
calls and messages from upset business owners and were told the tent company was
having staffing issues and weather related problems with taking the tent down. The tent
company did not tell the event organizers that it would be Monday before they would return
to take the tent down. Event organizers did everything in their power to have the tent
removed. They also encountered several other issues with the vendor (not on town
property).

After the tent was removed on Monday, Public Works discovered damages to the asphalt in
the parking lot that were not properly repaired. This specific vendor is very aware of what
must be done to repair the asphalt as this has been brought to their attention on several
occasions in the past.

The Town is assessing fees to the event organizers for the damages to the asphalt. Staff
has been in touch with event organizers, and they are hopeful the fees will be paid by the
tent company; however, currently the Town only has a method to recoup the fees via billing
the event organizers.

At this time fees have not been assessed for failure to remove the tent within the permitted
time. The unfortunate situation is that based on the Event Permit and policy, the local non-

profit would be assessed the fees and not the ompany who violated the policy and
broke their contract with the non-profit. 57
In order for an event to erect a tent in the parkingTot, they must fill out an event application
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and receive approval from the Board of Commissioners. If it is during paid parking season,
the event pays a daily fee per parking space that is closed. However, in the off season there
are not fees for the use of the parking lot.

The tent company works directly with the Fire Marshal and completes a separate tent permit
and must schedule inspections within 3 days of the event. The Fire Department coordinates
this procedure as there are many tented events that occur within Town limits on private
property that do not require BOC approval or an event application.

Staff has two recommendations:

1) Establish a penalty to be assessed to the event or tent company for each day after a
permit is expired that a tent remains causing a parking lot to be closed. If done via the event
application/procedures the event organizer would be charged. If done via the tent permit, the
applicant for the permit could be assessed the damage fees. (In this case, the non-profit
submitted the tent and event applications and are therefore ultimately responsible for all
damages.)

2) Do not allow large tents to be erected in Town parking lots. (This excludes 10x10 easy up
tents — this refers only to the large tents as defined by the Tent Permit which require Fire
Marshal inspections).

Additional Background:

Every time an event closes a parking lot and erects a tent, it requires a minimum parking lot
closure of 3 days (1 for set-up, 1 for the event & 1 for breakdown). These closures generate
numerous phone calls from business owners who are upset with Town staff about the lack of
parking in downtown.

Large tents must be anchored into the concrete. Often this creates damages to the existing
asphalt and requires staff time and town resources to repair. We do have a system in place
to recoup these costs directly from the event applicant.

The tent vendor involved in this situation is one of the only companies who services Beaufort
with tents of the size needed for large scale events. Event organizers often find themselves
in a dilemma as who to hire. There are other organizations based in Raleigh and Charleston
who can provide this service; however, they are more expensive and can not meet turn
around times to remove tents within the required time.

Links to existing Tent Permit/Procedures & Event Permit/Procedures:
Tent Permit & Info: https://www.beaufortnc.org/fire/page/tent-permit
Event Application & Procedures: https://www.beaufortnc.org/events

EXPECTED LENGTH OF PRESENTATION: 10 minutes

SUBMITTED BY: Rachel Johnson, Event Coordinator

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED: No
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Town of Beaufort

Tent Permit Application

The NC Fire Prevention Code requires tents in excess of 800 square feet and other membrane structures to be evaluated for fire
and life safety and a permit issued prior to the event. Applicants must submit completed application, attachments and permit fee to the
Town of Beaufort Fire Department three (3) days prior to event.

Submit Permit Application, Attachments and Tent Permit Fee of $50.00 to:

» Town of Beaufort Fire Department, Attention: Tammy Turek
» Located at: 506 Live Oak Street, Beaufort, NC 28516

» Fax: 252-728-2382

»  Email: t.turek@beaufortnc.org

A Tent Permit is not required if all of the following conditions are meant:

1) Tentis less than 1,800 square feet
2) Tentis open on all sides
3) Tent has a minimum clearance of 12 feet from all structures.

If you have any questions regarding your tent, please contact Tammy Turek, Beaufort Fire Department: 252—728-4325

SECTION |. EVENT INFORMATION

APPLICANT’S NAME:

PHONE NUMBER: E-MAIL ADDRESS:

NAME OF PERSON HOLDING EVENT: PHONE No.

EVENT ADDRESS/LOCATION:

NAME/TYPE OF EVENT:

TENT SET UP DATE: EVENT DATE(S): TIME OF EVENT:

SECTION Il. TENT INFORMATION
Size of tent: Sides? [JYES []NO Estimated number of attendees:

Will there be electricity? [] YES [] NO/ If so, Electrical Source: [] Existing power supply or [] Temporary power pole

*The Town’s Building Inspector is required to inspect a new temporary power pole prior to the power company turning on
the electricity. Existing power supplies, such as a residential or commercial outlet, have previously been inspected, and
therefore do not require an inspection.

Will there be heaters? [ ]YES [ ]NO

*Open flames or flammable liquids are not allowed in the tent, and all other heaters shall be approved by the Fire Inspector.
Please contact Fire Inspector for approved heating devices.

Will you be cooking? [JYES []NO

*Warming trays and other similar devices shall be approved by the Fire Inspector. Cooking tents with sides shall be
separated from the other tents by 20".

SECTION Ill. REQUIRED ATTACHMENTS

[] If there is not a permanently affixed National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 701 label located on the tent, the tent company
will provide a Certificate of Flame Resistance to the Fire Inspector.

[] Site Plan showing the tent’s location on the property.

The site plan is used to review whether there is adequate and safe access for fire trucks. Detailed site and floor plans
are required for tents with an occupant load of 50 or more

] Floor plan showing seating arrangements, exits, equipment being used, stage, etc.

Floor plans are used to determine the maximum number of people allowed in the tent and plans are reviewed for
safety.

SECTION VI. FOR OFFICE USE BELOW THIS LINE:
Permit Fee Received: [ JYES [ JNO INV.# Date:

Approved by: 59 Date:
FIRE INSPECTOR SIGNATURE
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Town of Beaufort
Tent Permit Application

The NC Fire Prevention Code requires tents in excess of 800 square feet and other membrane structures to be evaluated for fire
and life safety and a permil issued prior to the event. Applicants must submit completed application, attachments and permit fee to the
Town of Beaufort Fire Department three (3) days prior to event.

Submit Permit Application, Attachments and Tent Permit Fee of $50.00 to:

» Town of Beaufort Fire Department, Attention: Tammy Turek
» Located at: 506 Live Oak Street, Beaufort, NC 28516

»  Fax: 252-728-2382

»  Email: tiurek@beaufortne.org

A Tent Permit is not required if all of the following conditions are meant:

1) Tent is less than 1,800 square feet
2) Tentis open on all sides
3) Tent has a minimum clearance of 12 feet from all structures.

[f you have any questions regarding your tent, please contact Tammy Turek, Beaufort Fire Department: 252-728-4325

' SECTION I. EVENT INFORMATION
APPLICANT’S NAME: Beawsfort Wine and Food WWee )y Lhe . = Eristen PfC’SCOH‘

PHONENUMBER: (252) b I5 - 070 % E-MALL ADDRESS: b5 Fen(@ heeutfovi wine cnd

NAME OF PERSON HOLDING EVENT: [Beau forf W{ne_ + Foeo d | ProNENo. (25 z_) 515 -0 10D

EVENT ADDRESS/LOCATION: \NQQ‘- mmm - (_2(;1\(9:15‘ 4981
DS

NAME/TYPE OF EVENT: 1) M\Wf\ m u\\\:g}
. TIME OF EVENT:

TENT SET UP DATE: lb U EVENT DATE(S): lb ]
'SECTION II. TENT luponmmo"
Size of tent: Ly )( \DD Sides? B4 YES [NO

Estimated number of attendees: (9\(1:\)

Will there be electricity? [XYES [INO/ If so, Electrical Source: [SdExisting power supply or [[] Temporary power pole

*The Town’s Building Inspector is required to inspect a new temporary power pole prior to the power company turning on
the electricity. Existing power supplies, such as a residential or commercial outlet, have previously been inspected, and
therefore do not require an inspection.

Will there be heaters?  [] YES Fl NO
*Open flames or flammable liquids are not allowed in the tent, and all other heaters shall be approved by the Fire Inspector.
Please contact Fire Inspect)df)r approved heating devices.

Will you be cooking? AYES [INo
*Warming trays and other similar devices shall be approved by the Fire Inspector. Cooking tents with sides shall be
separated from the other tents by 20".

'SECTION Ill. REQUIRED ATTACHMENTS

A" If there is not a permanently affixed National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 701 label located on the tent, the tent company
will provide a Certificate of Flame Resistance to the Fire Inspector.

ite Plan showing the tent’s location on the property.

The site plan is used to review whether there is adequate and safe access for fire trucks. Detailed site and floor plans
aryequired for tents with an occupant load of 60 or more

loor plan showing seating arrangements, exits, equipment being used, stage, etc.

. Floor plans are used to determine the maximum number of people allowed in the tent and plans are reviewed for
safety.

'SECTION VI. For OFFICE USE BELOW THIS LINE:

Permit Fee Received: [JYES, [INO  INV.#_J)2 —C0O H2C)

Approved by:

FIRE INSP: OR SIGNATURE 61




Tent Layout

Dc)ck Hous

@‘

400 Block Front Street, Beaufort, NC 28516
“West Parking Lot”

All consumption will take place under the tent
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Tkon of Beaufort

Tent Permit Application

The NC Fire Prevention Code requires tents in excess of 800 square feet and other membrane structures to be evaluated for fire
and life safety and a permit issued prior to the event. Applicants must submit completed application, attachments and permit fee to the
Town of Beaufort Fire Department three (3) days prior to event.

Submit Permit Application, Attachments and Tent Permit Fee of $50.00 to:

» Town of Beaufort Fire Department, Attention: Tammy Turck
» Located at: 506 Live Oak Street, Beaufort, NC 28516

»  Fax: 252-728-2382

»  Email: t.turek@beaufortne.org

A Tent Permit is not required if all of the following conditions are meant:

1) Tentis less than 1,800 square feet
2) Tentis open on all sides
3) Tent has a minimum clearance of 12 feet from all structures.

If you havc any questlons 1egardmg you1 tent plcase contact Tammy Tmek Beaufmt Fne Depaltment 252 728 4325

nA_WC -
E-MAIL ADDRESS: |_(\§ Wb’ (] L\m 'HNW)CW
PHONE No. aF;Q\ 53[#-) 070? e

PHONE NUMBER:

NAME OF PERSON HOLDING EVENT: |
EVENT ADDRESS/LOCATION: { ‘

NAME/TYPE OF EVENT:

TENT SET Up DATE: \ ‘

S:e of tent: %x \w Estimated number of attendees: aab’ N

Will there be electricity? [] YES [[] NO/ If so, Electrical Source: [ ] Existing power supply or [] Temporary power pole

*The Town's Building Inspector is required to inspect a new temporary power pole prior to the power company turning on
the electricity. Existing power supplies, such as a residential or commercial outlet, have previously been inspected, and
therefore do not require an inspection.

Will there be heaters?  [_] YES ﬁ NO
*Open flames or flammable liquids'are not allowed in the tent, and all other heaters shall be approved by the Fire Inspector.
Please contact Fire Inspector for approved heating devices.

Will you be cooking? %YES [OIno
*Warming trays and other similar devices shall be approved by the Fire Inspector. Cooking tents with sides shall be
separated from the other tents by 20",

| SECTION Ill. REQUIRED ATTACHMENTS

PL] If there is not a permanently affixed National Fire Protection Association (NF PA) 701 label located on the tent, the tent company
will provide a Certificate of Flame Resistance to the Fire Inspector.

g Site Plan showing the tent’s location on the property.
“ The site plan is used to review whether there is adequate and safe access for fire trucks. Detailed site and floor plans
\ gre required for tents with an occupant load of 50 or more

Floor plan showing seating arrangements, exits, equipment being used, stage, etc.

Floor plans are used to determine the maximum number of people allowed in the tent and plans are reviewed for
safety.

| SECTION VI. FoR OFFiCE USE BELOW/THISILINE:
Permit Fee Recei Q :[Jyes [INO INv# QRA-OO22/7)
R e VY

FIRE INSPECTOR SIGNATURE

64

Approved by:
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Town of Beaufort, NC

701 Front St. - P.O. Box 390 - Beaufort, N.C. 28516 252-728-
2141 - 252-728-3982 fax - www.beaufortnc.org

Board of CommissionersVirtual

Work Session

4:00 PM - Monday, Oct. 25, 2021

AGENDA CATEGORY:

SUBJECT: Financial Notes

BRIEF SUMMARY:

e Tax balances remaining are listed for August and September.

Items for Discussion and Consideration

Tax Year Balance Remaining Collection Rate to Date

August
2014 $1,748
2015 $5,380
2016 $14,532
2017 $18,936
2018 $20,658
2019 $43,676
2020 $77,076
2021 $4,262,814

September

Tax Year Balance Remaining
2014 51,669
2015 55,285
2016 513,709
2017 518,033
2018 519,804
2019 542,770
2020 575,743
2021 54,012,536

e Sales and Use tax distribution for October is $228,391 (July sales)

REQUESTED ACTION:

No action requested/ review

EXPECTED LENGTH OF PRESENTATION: 5 minutes

99.93%
99.79%
99.45%
99.36%
99.37%
98.86%
98.39%
12.96%

Collection Rate to Date

67

99.94%
99.79%
99.48%
99.39%
99.40%
98.89%
98.42%
18.68%



http://www.beaufortnc.org/

5 minutes
SUBMITTED BY:
Christi Wood — Finance Director

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED:

No

68




Comparison of FY 19,20,21,22 Sales and Use Tax Distributions
Sales Month Collection Month  Distribution Month  Distribution Amount FY 2019 Distribution Amount FY 2020  Distribution Amount FY 2021 Distribution Amount FY 2022 % change from PY

July August October $102,279 $154,624 $198,338 $228,391 15%
August September November $118,261 $147,895 $158,529
September October December $104,910 $132,455 $173,832
October November January $113,279 $130,905 $162,919
November December February $118,047 $116,991 $155,965
December January March $112,470 $133,544 $177,189
January February April $91,523 $110,330 $137,779
February March May $96,640 $96,305 $136,463
March April June $127,685 $127,868 $191,746
April May July $123,099 $110,588 $190,518
May June August $145,214 $158,801 $210,430
June July September $150,652 $202,009 $250,816
Total §1!404 059 §1 622,314 §2 144,525
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Page: 1 TOWN OF BEAUFORT 10/19/2021
Statement of Revenue and Expenditures - Operating 1 9. B
Revenue Account Range: 10-301-0000 to 60-305-0001 Include Non-Anticipated: Yes Year To Date As Of: 09/30/21
Expend Account Range: First to Last Include Non-Budget: No Current Period: 09/01/21 to 09/30/21
Print Zero YTD Activity: No Prior Year: 09/01/20 to 09/30/20
Revenue Account  Description Prior Yr Rev Anticipated Curr Rev YTD Rev Excess/Deficit % Real
10-301-0000 AD VALOREM TAX - CURRENT YEAR $4,708,340.17 $4,835,580.00 $634,505.03 $634,505.03  -$4,201,074.97 13%
10-301-0001 AD VALOREM TAX PRIOR YEAR $76,907.28 $70,000.00 $30,078.30 $36,072.81 -$33,927.19 52%
10-301-0002 PENALTIES AND INTEREST $21,993.56 $10,000.00 $1,153.11 $2,310.79 -$7,689.21 23%
10-301-0003 AD VALOREM TAX - CORP. TAX $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $547.48 $547.48 0%
10-301-0004 MOTOR VEHICLE TAX $215,678.89 $200,000.00 $207.01 $22,641.69 -$177,358.31 1%
10-301-0006 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES $5,903.86 $6,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 -$6,000.00 0%
10-303-0001 LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX $2,144,525.10 $1,742,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 -$1,742,200.00 0%
10-303-0002 UTILITIES FRANCHISE TAX $380,180.52 $380,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 -$380,000.00 0%
10-303-0003 BEER AND WINE TAX $17,879.79 $18,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 -$18,200.00 0%
10-303-0004 POWELL BILL $113,553.99 $120,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 -$120,000.00 0%
10-303-0012 GRANT FROM NC NATURAL & CULTURAL RES. $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
10-303-0014 FEMA MITIGATION GRANT $0.00 $84,650.00 $0.00 $0.00 -$84,650.00 0%
10-303-0015 FEMA HURRICANE REIMBURSEMENT $88,591.02 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
10-303-0016 GRANTS - SRO, CAD, School Safety $66,494.93 $230,000.00 $0.00 $21,649.98 -$208,350.02 9%
10-303-0019 CARES RELIEF FUNDS $94,768.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
10-304-0001 COUNTY ABC PROFIT DISTRIBUTION $227,930.00 $171,700.00 $0.00 $0.00 -$171,700.00 0%
10-304-0002 FIRE DISTRICT AD VALOREM TAX $334,081.08 $800,105.00 $0.00 $100,031.66 -$700,073.34 13%
10-304-0003 FIRE DISTRICT SALES TAX $105,000.00 $130,000.00 $0.00 $21,666.66 -$108,333.34 17%
10-304-0004 HARLOWE DIST AD VALOREM TAX $68,093.40 $67,954.00 $0.00 $11,349.16 -$56,604.84 17%
10-304-0005 HARLOWE FIRE DISTRCIT SALES TAX $20,032.44 $20,033.00 $0.00 $3,338.66 -$16,694.34 17%
10-304-0020 MISC REVENUE-FIRE DEPARTMENT $2,001.00 $0.00 $150.00 $350.00 $350.00 0%
10-305-0001 SOLID WASTE USER FEE ( RES) $556,677.80 $576,100.00 $49,210.93 $147,001.92 -$429,098.08 26%
10-305-0002 SOLID WASTE USER FEES ( COMM ) $13,200.21 $13,770.00 $1,146.96 $3,440.88 -$10,329.12 25%
10-305-0003 STORMWATER RESIDENTIAL $141,739.95 $136,000.00 $18,212.56 $18,212.56 -$117,787.44 13%
10-305-0004 SOLID WASTE USER FEE -WBD $33,562.33 | 70 $35,700.00 $3,200.01 $9,374.88 -$26,325.12 26%




Page: 2 TOWN OF BEAUFORT 10/19/2021
Statement of Revenue and Expenditures - Operating 1 9. B

Revenue Account  Description Prior Yr Rev Anticipated Curr Rev YTD Rev Excess/Deficit % Real
10-305-0005 BUILDING PERMITS $316,037.22 $180,000.00 $28,894.85 $68,685.35 -$111,314.65 38%
10-305-0006 PARKING METER $90,710.39 $180,000.00 $1,228.35 $108,459.82 -$71,540.18 60%
10-305-0007 PARKING VIOLATIONS/PENALTIES $4,135.95 $20,000.00 $900.00 $4,264.00 -$15,736.00 21%
10-305-0008 COURT COSTS, FEES, CHARGES $843.00 $750.00 $261.50 $696.50 -$53.50 93%
10-305-0009 ROAD RACE REGISTRATION $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 -$2,500.00 0%
10-305-0011 SPECIAL EVENT FEES $4,450.00 $0.00 $0.00 $350.00 $350.00 0%
10-305-0012 SPECIAL EVENT PARKING FEES $1,350.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
10-305-0013 TRAIN DEPOT RENTAL $10.00 $0.00 -$15.00 $65.00 $65.00 0%
10-306-0001 PROPERTY LEASES $225,536.98 $228,490.00 $0.00 $50,054.82 -$178,435.18 22%
10-306-0002 ANTENNA CONTRACT REVENUE $68,876.90 $69,900.00 $0.00 $44,105.37 -$25,794.63 63%
10-306-0003 CEMETERY LOT SALES $6,057.12 $3,500.00 $575.00 $2,125.00 -$1,375.00 61%
10-306-0005 SALE OF PROPERTY $13,600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
10-306-0006 SALE OF SURPLUS PROPERTY $2,915.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
10-306-0010 SURETY BOND -$7,840.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 0%
10-307-0001 INVESTMENT EARNINGS $3,606.52 $10,000.00 $0.00 $305.79 -$9,694.21 3%
10-307-0002 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE $27,133.94 $2,700.00 $905.00 $3,360.00 $660.00 124%
10-307-0003 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE - PD $4,395.00 $0.00 $210.00 $3,114.00 $3,114.00 0%
10-307-0007 PROCEEDS FROM LOAN $0.00 $360,000.00 $0.00 $360,000.00 $0.00 100%
10-307-0008 REIMBURSEMENT FROM INSURANCE $2,817.34 $0.00 $2,907.56 $3,157.56 $3,157.56 0%
10-307-0009 APPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE $0.00 $272,940.00 $0.00 $0.00 -$272,940.00 0%
10-307-0010 UTILITY FUND ADMIN EXPENSE ALLOCATION $600,000.00 $624,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 -$624,000.00 0%
10-329-0065 TRANSFER FROM CRF $0.00 $207,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 -$207,000.00 0%
10-900-9000 cancel revenue $174.08 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
General Fund Revenue Total $10,801,944.76 $11,809,772.00 $773,731.17 $1,684,237.37 $10,125,534.63 14%

Expend Account Description Prior Yr Expd Budgeted Curr Expd YTD Expd Encumbered Balance % Expd
10-410-0000 GOVERNING BODY: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
10-410-0200 SALARIES AND WAGES $47,226.00 | 1 }48,170.52 $4,014.21 $12,042.63 $0.00 $36,127.89 25%




Page: 3
Expend Account Description
10-410-0500 FICA
10-410-0800 WORKERS COMPENSATION
10-410-1130 POSTAGE
10-410-1140 PUBLIC NOTICES/ADVERTISING
10-410-1141 NEWSLETTER
10-410-1210 OFFICE SUPPLIES
10-410-1250 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS
10-410-1430 TRAINING- REGISTRATION & CLASS MAT
10-410-1431 TRAVEL MILEAGE
10-410-1432 MEALS
10-410-1433 LODGING
10-410-4520 CODIFICATION
10-410-5400 INSURANCE
10-410-5720 ELECTIONS
410 Total
10-420-0000 ADMINISTRATION:
10-420-0200 SALARIES AND WAGES
10-420-0500 FICA EXPENSE
10-420-0600 GROUP INSURANCE EXPENSE
10-420-0700 RETIREMENT EXPENSE
10-420-0800 WORKERS COMPENSATION
10-420-0900 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE EXPENSE
10-420-1110 TELEPHONE
10-420-1120 INTERNET/CABLE
10-420-1130 POSTAGE
10-420-1210 OFFICE SUPPLIES
10-420-1220 OFFICE EQUIPMENT (NON-CAPITAL)
10-420-1221 OFFICE EQUIPMENT LEASES

TOWN OF BEAUFORT

10/19/2021

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures - Operating 1 9. B
Prior Yr Expd Budgeted Curr Expd YTD Expd Encumbered Balance % Expd
$3,612.48 $3,853.64 $307.07 $921.21 $0.00 $2,932.43 24%
$142.00 $152.08 $0.00 $142.00 $0.00 $10.08 93%
$32.70 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
$5,069.93 $4,590.00 $817.99 $817.99 $0.00 $3,772.01 18%
$4,061.99 $4,080.00 $0.00 $707.33 $0.00 $3,372.67 17%
$105.06 $1,020.00 $0.00 $5.20 $0.00 $1,014.80 1%
$9,978.71 $11,526.00 $859.15 $8,952.15 $104.99 $2,468.86 79%
$8,291.25 $5,100.00 $0.00 $100.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 2%
$0.00 $765.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $765.00 0%

$0.00 $1,530.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,530.00 0%

$0.00 $2,040.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,040.00 0%
$2,773.92 $2,550.00 $0.00 $1,295.00 $0.00 $1,255.00 51%
$3,500.00 $5,292.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,292.00 0%
$0.00 $7,057.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,057.00 0%
$84,794.04 $97,726.24 $5,998.42 $24,983.51 $104.99 $72,637.74 26%
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
$262,517.14 $358,232.00 $20,382.24 $84,727.61 $0.00 $273,504.39 24%
$19,784.56 $28,659.00 $1,484.21 $6,247.48 $0.00 $22,411.52 22%
$19,919.46 $29,587.00 $1,757.58 $5,274.32 $0.00 $24,312.68 18%
$40,384.81 $58,786.00 $3,939.57 $12,673.89 $0.00 $46,112.11 22%
$1,804.30 $2,301.00 $0.00 $2,147.00 $0.00 $154.00 93%
$7,137.71 $7,140.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,140.00 0%
$4,618.66 $7,524.00 $927.28 $1,755.09 $0.00 $5,768.91 23%
$6,883.46 $7,038.00 $570.94 $1,141.38 $0.00 $5,896.62 16%
$2,810.49 $3,060.00 $79.86 $522.15 $52.15 $2,485.70 19%
$13,621.62 $15,435.00 $2,686.36 $4,178.60 $1,202.11 $10,054.29 35%
$0.00 $5,561.00 $1,276.73 $1,276.73 $0.00 $4,284.27 23%
$5,827.00 | 2 |$7,956.00 $452.73 $1,815.79 $0.00 $6,140.21 23%




Page: 4
Expend Account Description
10-420-1230 OFFICE CONTRACT SERVICES
10-420-1250 DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS
10-420-1310 ELECTRIC
10-420-1330 WATER/SEWER/SOLID WASTE
10-420-1430 TRAINING-REGISTRATION & CLASS MAT'
10-420-1431 TRAVEL MILEAGE
10-420-1432 MEALS
10-420-1433 LODGING
10-420-1630 EQUIPMENT MAINT. & REPAIRS
10-420-5400 INSURANCE

420 Total

10-430-0000 FINANCE:
10-430-0200 SALARIES AND WAGES
10-430-0201 OVERTIME
10-430-0500 FICA EXPENSE
10-430-0600 GROUP INSURANCE EXPENSE
10-430-0700 RETIREMENT EXPENSE
10-430-0800 WORKERS COMPENSATION
10-430-1230 OFFICE CONTRACT SERVICES
10-430-1250 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS
10-430-1430 TRAINING-REGISTRATION & CLASS MATE
10-430-1431 TRAVEL MILEAGE
10-430-1432 MEALS
10-430-1433 LODGING
10-430-1630 EQUIPMENT MAINT & REPAIRS
10-430-4510 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
10-430-4520 TAX COLLECTION ADMIN EXPENSE PROP.
10-430-4525 TAX COLLECTION ADMIN EXPENSE MVT

TOWN OF BEAUFORT 10/19/2021
Statement of Revenue and Expenditures - Operating 1 9. o
Prior Yr Expd Budgeted Curr Expd YTD Expd Encumbered Balance % Expd
$4,909.45 $6,120.00 $847.54 $1,374.88 $215.00 $4,530.12 26%
$2,611.44 $4,400.00 $0.00 $615.99 $99.99 $3,684.02 16%
$12,252.38 $17,136.00 $1,359.99 $3,764.12 $0.00 $13,371.88 22%
$1,921.43 $3,264.00 $384.85 $937.46 $0.00 $2,326.54 29%
$3,089.62 $5,210.00 $0.00 $200.00 $0.00 $5,010.00 4%
$0.00 $2,470.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,470.00 0%

$0.00 $1,465.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,465.00 0%

$0.00 $4,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,750.00 0%

$0.00 $102.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $102.00 0%
$51,302.60 $59,988.00 $0.00 $59,987.60 $0.00 $0.40 100%
$461,396.13 $636,184.00 $36,149.88 $188,640.09 $1,569.25 $445,974.66 30%
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
$259,623.71 $275,264.00 $18,715.80 $67,191.27 $0.00 $208,072.73 24%
$7.83 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
$18,549.11 $22,023.00 $1,325.32 $4,810.42 $0.00 $17,212.58 22%
$32,055.81 $36,983.00 $2,345.38 $7,039.30 $0.00 $29,943.70 19%
$39,292.98 $45,176.00 $3,066.36 $11,016.24 $0.00 $34,159.76 24%
$1,210.00 $1,173.00 $0.00 $1,210.00 $0.00 -$37.00 103%
$29,028.50 $29,580.00 $959.00 $2,611.00 $0.00 $26,969.00 9%
$226.84 $408.00 $36.25 $36.25 $0.00 $371.75 9%
$3,625.00 $2,040.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20.00 $2,020.00 1%
$0.00 $1,020.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,020.00 0%

$0.00 $612.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $612.00 0%

$0.00 $1,938.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,938.00 0%

$0.00 $510.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $510.00 0%
$18,954.20 $20,400.00 $3,185.00 $7,285.00 $0.00 $13,115.00 36%
$98,659.86 $96,925.00 $13,673.84 $13,819.71 $0.00 $83,105.29 14%
$11,445.01 | 3 510,800.00 $6.96 $1,030.89 $0.00 $9,769.11 10%
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Expend Account Description Prior Yr Expd Budgeted Curr Expd YTD Expd Encumbered Balance % Expd
430 Total $512,678.85 $544,852.00 $43,313.91 $116,050.08 $20.00 $428,781.92 21%

10-450-0000 PARKING DEPARTMENT: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
10-450-0200 SALARIES AND WAGES $17,313.89 $37,467.00 $5,096.19 $21,809.69 $0.00 $15,657.31 58%
10-450-0201 OVERTIME $498.75 $2,080.00 $42.75 $741.00 $0.00 $1,339.00 36%
10-450-0205 OTHER SALARIES - PART TIME $0.00 $14,085.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $14,085.00 0%
10-450-0500 FICA EXPENSE $1,095.49 $4,314.00 $393.14 $1,725.20 $0.00 $2,588.80 40%
10-450-0600 GROUP INSURANCE $1,171.44 $7,397.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,397.00 0%
10-450-0700 RETIREMENT EXPENSE $1,109.73 $6,503.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,503.00 0%
10-450-0800 WORKERS COMPENSATION $1,343.00 $1,439.00 $0.00 $1,343.00 $0.00 $96.00 93%
10-450-1210 OFFICE SUPPLIES $1,115.47 $2,040.00 $0.00 $180.00 $0.00 $1,860.00 9%
10-450-1230 OFFICE CONTRACT SERVICES - SOFTWARE $10,944.00 $12,387.00 $912.00 $2,736.00 $0.00 $9,651.00 22%
10-450-1430 TRAINING -REGISTRATION AND CLASS MAT'L $0.00 $1,071.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,071.00 0%
10-450-1431 TRAVEL MILEAGE $0.00 $408.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $408.00 0%
10-450-1432 MEALS $0.00 $306.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $306.00 0%
10-450-1433 LODGING $0.00 $816.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $816.00 0%
10-450-1620 EQUIPMENT RENTAL - HANDHELDS $440.00 $1,734.00 $147.50 $1,027.50 $0.00 $706.50 59%
10-450-1630 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS $2,111.15 $3,060.00 $4.00 $1,414.48 $0.00 $1,645.52 46%
10-450-3901 PARKING METER CREDIT CARD PROCESSING $2,132.77 $22,440.00 $278.70 $13,897.64 $67.25 $8,475.11 62%
10-450-3902 COLLECTION FEES $0.00 $2,040.00 $8.31 $224.25 $0.00 $1,815.75 1%
10-450-4550 CONTRACT SERVICES $0.00 $3,060.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,060.00 0%
10-450-5730 CONTINGENCY $0.00 $13,260.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,260.00 0%
10-450-8010 DEBT SERVICE - PRINCIPAL $7,640.04 $8,192.64 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,192.64 0%
10-450-8011 DEBT SERVICE - INTEREST $1,163.32 $610.68 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $610.68 0%
450 Total $48,079.05 $144,710.32 $6,882.59 $45,098.76 $67.25 $99,544.31 31%

10-510-0000 POLICE DEPARTMENT: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
10-510-0200 SALARIES AND WAGES $1,031,915.43  $1,071,758.00 $81,140.70 $268,998.96 $0.00 $802,759.04 25%
10-510-0201 OVERTIME $26,948.12 $30,600.00 $2,103.84 $7,602.51 $0.00 $22,997.49 25%
10-510-0203 SEPARATION PAY $42,342.40 | 4 b41,400.00 $3,567.22 $12,485.27 $0.00 $28,914.73 30%
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Expend Account Description
10-510-0205 OTHER SALARIES-PARTTIME
10-510-0500 FICA EXPENSE
10-510-0600 GROUP INSURANCE EXPENSE
10-510-0700 RETIREMENT EXPENSE
10-510-0800 WORKERS COMPENSATION
10-510-1110 TELEPHONE
10-510-1111 TELEPHONE-CELLULAR
10-510-1120 INTERNET/CABLE
10-510-1130 POSTAGE
10-510-1210 OFFICE SUPPLIES
10-510-1220 OFFICE EQUIPMENT (NON-CAPITAL)
10-510-1221 OFFICE EQUIPMENT LEASES
10-510-1230 OFFICE CONTRACT SERVICES
10-510-1250 DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS
10-510-1260 MISC. ADMIN. EXPENSE
10-510-1310 ELECTRIC
10-510-1330 WATER/SEWER/SOLID WASTE
10-510-1420 OSHA/SAFETY COMPLIANE
10-510-1430 TRAINING- REGISTRATION &CLASS MAT'
10-510-1431 TRAVEL MILEAGE
10-510-1432 MEALS
10-510-1433 LODGING
10-510-1440 UNIFORMS
10-510-1451 EMPLOYEE WELLNESS
10-510-1610 NON-CAPITAL EQUIPMENT PURCHASE
10-510-1630 EQUIPMENT MAINT. & REPAIRS
10-510-1710 AUTO FUEL
10-510-1730 VEHICLE MAINT. & REPAIRS

TOWN OF BEAUFORT 10/19/2021
Statement of Revenue and Expenditures - Operating 1 9. o
Prior Yr Expd Budgeted Curr Expd YTD Expd Encumbered Balance % Expd
$2,926.23 $16,830.00 $0.00 $306.69 $0.00 $16,523.31 2%
$81,293.46 $92,944.00 $6,422.47 $21,481.55 $0.00 $71,462.45 23%
$130,043.91 $140,537.00 $10,553.26 $30,801.53 $0.00 $109,735.47 22%
$165,591.85 $187,609.00 $14,124.48 $46,917.96 $0.00 $140,691.04 25%
$41,466.72 $42,776.00 $0.00 $43,000.00 $0.00 -$224.00 101%
$3,901.26 $6,500.00 $729.93 $1,438.27 $0.00 $5,061.73 22%
$9,846.76 $11,300.00 $849.79 $1,698.76 $0.00 $9,601.24 15%
$5,305.66 $6,200.00 $465.43 $930.93 $0.00 $5,269.07 15%
$603.15 $750.00 $0.00 $29.97 $0.00 $720.03 4%
$3,232.59 $2,500.00 $162.86 $381.85 $368.55 $1,749.60 30%
$1,424.99 $2,000.00 $0.00 $580.68 $0.00 $1,419.32 29%
$5,706.55 $4,200.00 $349.25 $1,401.78 $0.00 $2,798.22 33%
$31,734.72 $31,870.00 $484.76 $14,159.03 $0.00 $17,710.97 44%
$801.31 $2,500.00 $54.42 $90.67 $0.00 $2,409.33 4%
$20.50 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0%
$6,730.00 $6,300.00 $633.40 $1,858.32 $0.00 $4,441.68 29%
$3,353.36 $3,500.00 $222.92 $468.54 $0.00 $3,031.46 13%
$625.02 $1,336.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,336.00 0%
$5,451.75 $12,000.00 $175.00 $175.00 $285.46 $11,539.54 4%
$0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0%
$2,091.37 $3,500.00 $337.29 $480.84 $209.44 $2,809.72 20%
$2,026.07 $4,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 0%
$7,624.90 $15,000.00 $3,716.10 $8,318.24 $0.00 $6,681.76 55%
$9,499.00 $11,800.00 $473.00 $2,382.00 $0.00 $9,418.00 20%
$70,366.46 $25,000.00 $0.00 $8,836.96 $323.31 $15,839.73 37%
$6,054.69 $4,000.00 $223.60 $503.83 $0.00 $3,496.17 13%
$24,497.75 537,000.00 $2,916.85 $8,067.21 $0.00 $28,932.79 22%
$8,737.26 | ° 515,000.00 $77.29 $2,107.53 $3,834.68 $9,057.79 40%
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Statement of Revenue and Expenditures - Operating 1 9. B

Expend Account Description Prior Yr Expd Budgeted Curr Expd YTD Expd Encumbered Balance % Expd
10-510-3310 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES & MATERIALS $8,169.99 $15,000.00 $4,779.38 $6,615.11 $6,452.65 $1,932.24 87%
10-510-4510 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $0.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 0%
10-510-4560 ABANDONED AND DERELICT VESSEL REMOVA $4,380.15 $12,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 0%
10-510-4570 MARINE OPERATIONS $2,016.96 $4,000.00 $569.30 $1,078.05 $85.35 $2,836.60 29%
10-510-5400 INSURANCE AND BONDS $25,136.27 $26,438.00 $0.00 $26,438.00 $0.00 $0.00 100%
10-510-5791 CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION $3,516.70 $10,000.00 $0.00 $344.80 $0.00 $9,655.20 3%
10-510-5793 CRIME PREVENTION $2,012.39 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 0%
10-510-7430 CAPITAL OUTLAY - VEHICLES $127,728.78 $52,356.00 $0.00 $0.00 $52,355.98 $0.02 100%
10-510-8010 DEBT SERVICE - PRINCIPAL $16,594.00 $16,594.37 $16,594.00 $16,594.00 $0.00 $0.37 100%
10-510-8011 DEBT SERVICE - INTEREST $662.25 $626.11 $662.25 $662.25 $0.00 -$36.14 106%
10-510-9020 GRANT EXPENDITURES $43,350.44 $180,000.00 $0.00 $10,575.00 $0.00  $169,425.00 6%
510 Total $1,965,731.17  $2,155,724.48 $152,388.79 $547,812.09 $63,915.42 $1,543,996.97 28%

10-531-0000 FIRE DEPARTMENT: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
10-531-0200 SALARIES & WAGES $924,032.70 $965,079.91 $73,308.53 $256,218.09 $0.00  $708,861.82 27%
10-531-0201 OVERTIME $18,995.77 $36,553.13 $1,007.28 $6,772.69 $0.00 $29,780.44 19%
10-531-0205 SALARIES-PARTIME/PRN $40,501.83 $43,942.00 $1,567.80 $5,632.87 $0.00 $38,309.13 13%
10-531-0500 FICA EXPENSE $72,701.06 $83,664.41 $5,592.98 $19,913.44 $0.00 $63,750.97 24%
10-531-0600 GROUP INSURANCE $117,239.19 $132,670.00 $10,011.40 $29,988.49 $0.00 $102,681.51 23%
10-531-0700 RETIREMENT EXPENSE $141,917.89 $164,505.54 $12,168.98 $43,078.03 $0.00 $121,427.51 26%
10-531-0701 FIREMAN'S PENSION FUND $1,920.00 $2,160.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,160.00 0%
10-531-0800 WORKERS COMPENSATION $50,946.00 $54,650.00 $0.00 $54,500.00 $0.00 $150.00 100%
10-531-1110 TELEPHONE $4,741.50 $7,440.00 $1,014.21 $1,687.19 $0.00 $5,752.81 23%
10-531-1111 TELEPHONE- CELLULAR $1,480.39 $2,550.00 $114.03 $228.06 $0.00 $2,321.94 9%
10-531-1120 INTERNET/CABLE $4,214.49 $4,508.00 $399.38 $799.26 $0.00 $3,708.74 18%
10-531-1130 POSTAGE $101.60 $204.00 $11.15 $11.15 $5.70 $187.15 8%
10-531-1210 OFFICE SUPPLIES $667.91 $1,224.00 $317.97 $375.95 $62.93 $785.12 36%
10-531-1220 OFFICE EQUIPMENT (NON-CAPITAL) $1,076.98 $1,530.00 $0.00 $853.98 $0.00 $676.02 56%
10-531-1221 OFFICE EQUIPMENT LEASES $2,996.57 | 76 $3,090.00 $239.94 $963.57 $0.00 $2,126.43 31%
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Expend Account Description
10-531-1230 OFFICE CONTRACT SERVICES
10-531-1250 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS
10-531-1310 ELECTRIC
10-531-1320 LP GAS
10-531-1330 WATER/SEWER/SOLID WASTE
10-531-1420 OSHA/ SAFETY COMPLIANCE
10-531-1421 SAFETY EQUIPMENT
10-531-1422 SAFETY SUPPLIES & MATERIALS
10-531-1430 TRAINING- REGIST & CLASS MATERIAL
10-531-1431 MILEAGE
10-531-1432 MEALS
10-531-1433 LODGING
10-531-1440 UNIFORMS
10-531-1510 BUILDING MAINTENANCE
10-531-1511 GROUND MAINT
10-531-1512 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
10-531-1513 CONTRACTED SERVICES
10-531-1610 NON-CAPITAL EQUIPMENT PURCHASE
10-531-1630 EQUIPMENT MAINT & REPAIRS
10-531-1710 AUTO FUEL
10-531-1730 VEHICLE MAINT & REPAIRS
10-531-3310 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES & MATERIALS
10-531-5400 INSURANCE & BONDS
10-531-7410 CAPITAL OUTLAY - BUILDINGS
10-531-7420 CAPITAL OUTLAY - EQUIPMENT
10-531-7430 CAPITAL OUTLAY- VEHICLES
10-531-8010 DEBT SERVICE - PRINCIPAL
10-531-8011 DEBT SERVICE - INTEREST

TOWN OF BEAUFORT 10/19/2021
Statement of Revenue and Expenditures - Operating 1 9. o
Prior Yr Expd Budgeted Curr Expd YTD Expd Encumbered Balance % Expd
$1,420.00 $1,703.00 $0.00 $2,128.00 $0.00 -$425.00 125%
$1,688.82 $2,090.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15.00 $2,075.00 1%
$19,456.86 $23,929.00 $1,800.60 $5,228.87 $0.00 $18,700.13 22%
$237.04 $510.00 $0.00 $19.20 $0.00 $490.80 4%
$4,200.53 $4,865.00 $301.01 $733.82 $0.00 $4,131.18 15%
$4,550.24 $13,558.00 $1,587.29 $1,657.29 $0.00 $11,900.71 12%
$26,656.23 $26,620.00 $0.00 $147.69 $0.00 $26,472.31 1%
$13,497.41 $3,060.00 $88.70 $139.82 $61.77 $2,858.41 7%
$2,992.54 $5,610.00 $962.08 $2,002.10 $0.00 $3,607.90 36%
$952.86 $816.00 $48.81 $48.81 $602.78 $164.41 80%
$1,676.62 $2,754.00 $36.81 $36.81 $6.04 $2,711.15 2%
$2,391.13 $3,060.00 $307.80 $307.80 $0.00 $2,752.20 10%
$15,171.42 $14,780.00 $231.29 $1,746.61 $0.00 $13,033.39 12%
$4,094.44 $4,662.00 $340.00 $708.13 $69.37 $3,884.50 17%
$133.91 $3,570.00 $203.23 $665.42 $0.00 $2,904.58 19%
$2,083.97 $1,836.00 $176.67 $522.68 $6.16 $1,307.16 29%
$6,455.78 $8,670.00 $112.00 $112.00 $0.00 $8,558.00 1%
$8,158.49 $23,090.00 $404.00 $404.00 $0.00 $22,686.00 2%
$2,584.00 $15,912.00 $226.49 $329.91 $0.00 $15,582.09 2%
$11,328.18 $23,460.00 $1,602.84 $4,229.11 $40.38 $19,190.51 18%
$33,558.20 $29,500.00 $197.70 $1,140.19 $0.00 $28,359.81 4%
$3,601.21 $9,180.00 $508.51 $1,353.10 $219.46 $7,607.44 17%
$36,681.00 $37,500.00 $0.00 $38,730.00 $0.00 -$1,230.00 103%
$0.00 $180,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $180,000.00 0%
$0.00 $62,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $62,000.00 0%
$0.00 $560,000.00 $0.00 $200,000.00 $359,998.00 $2.00 100%
$255,437.00 £326,287.11 $0.00 $100,000.00 $0.00 $226,287.11 31%
$95,790.32 | 77 boe,847.87 $0.00 $33,500.00 $0.00  $63,347.87 35%
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Expend Account Description Prior Yr Expd Budgeted Curr Expd YTD Expd Encumbered Balance % Expd
10-531-9003 HURRICANE SUPPLIES & MATERIALS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,904.26 -$2,904.26 0%
10-531-9010 COVID-19 RESPONSE $5,276.12 $0.00 $809.96 $970.90 $388.14 -$1,359.04 0%
531 Total $1,943,608.20  $2,989,640.97 $115,699.44 $817,885.03 $364,379.99 $1,807,375.95 40%

10-540-0000 PLANNING & INSPECTIONS: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
10-540-0200 SALARIES AND WAGES $324,814.43 $328,030.00 $30,004.31 $88,056.50 $0.00 $239,973.50 27%
10-540-0201 OVERTIME $1,243.47 $0.00 $0.00 $146.13 $0.00 -$146.13 0%
10-540-0500 FICA EXPENSE $24,334.19 $26,323.00 $2,282.27 $6,704.72 $0.00 $19,618.28 25%
10-540-0600 GROUP INSURANCE EXPENSE $35,316.45 $36,983.00 $2,343.44 $7,622.50 $0.00 $29,360.50 21%
10-540-0700 RETIREMENT EXPENSE $48,883.21 $53,995.00 $4,895.80 $14,395.33 $0.00 $39,599.67 27%
10-540-0800 WORKERS COMPENSATION $5,682.79 $6,183.00 $0.00 $5,733.00 $0.00 $450.00 93%
10-540-1230 OFFICE CONTRACT SERVICES $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 100%
10-540-1250 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS $2,642.42 $2,500.00 $15.87 $328.96 $0.00 $2,171.04 13%
10-540-1420 OSHA/SAFETY COMPLIANCE $0.00 $300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 0%
10-540-1430 TRAINING-REGISTRATION & CLASS MAT' $2,675.00 $3,400.00 $325.00 $325.00 $0.00 $3,075.00 10%
10-540-1431 TRAVEL MILEAGE $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0%
10-540-1432 MEALS $0.00 $800.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $800.00 0%
10-540-1433 LODGING $0.00 $2,400.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,400.00 0%
10-540-1610 NON-CAPITAL EQUIPMENT PURCHASE $744.41 $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 0%
10-540-1710 AUTO FUEL $495.84 $1,000.00 $90.23 $219.81 $0.00 $780.19 22%
10-540-1730 VEHICLE MAINT & REPAIRS $1,164.05 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0%
10-540-1810 PERMITS & FEES RECURRING $1,390.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 0%
10-540-3510 HISTORIC COMM.EXPENSE $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 0%
10-540-3512 HISTORIC COMM-TRAVEL $0.00 $1,800.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,800.00 0%
10-540-4510 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
10-540-7420 CAPITAL OUTLAY-PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $84,900.25 $102,600.00 $0.00 $23,017.00 $72,082.75 $7,500.25 93%
10-540-8010 DEBT SERVICE - PRINCIPAL $4,840.00 $4,840.44 $4,840.00 $4,840.00 $0.00 $0.44 100%
10-540-8011 DEBT SERVICE - INTEREST $183.00 $182.20 $183.00 $183.00 $0.00 -$0.80 100%
540 Total $554,309.51 | /8 578,336.64 $44,979.92 $152,571.95 $72,082.75 $353,681.94 39%
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Expend Account Description Prior Yr Expd Budgeted Curr Expd YTD Expd Encumbered Balance % Expd
10-550-0000 PUBLIC SERVICE ADMINISTRATION: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
10-550-0200 SALARIES AND WAGES $211,860.14 $207,535.00 $16,521.88 $57,610.68 $0.00 $149,924 .32 28%
10-550-0500 FICA EXPENSE $14,367.64 $16,603.00 $1,181.94 $4,153.17 $0.00 $12,449.83 25%
10-550-0600 GROUP INSURANCE EXPENSE $13,540.86 $14,793.00 $1,173.66 $3,522.56 $0.00 $11,270.44 24%
10-550-0700 RETIREMENT $30,078.22 $34,056.00 $2,693.20 $9,399.79 $0.00 $24,656.21 28%
10-550-1230 OFFICE CONTRACT SERVICES $5,126.45 $8,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,750.00 0%
10-550-1250 DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS $181.37 $250.00 $36.28 $72.53 $0.00 $177.47 29%
10-550-1420 OSHA/SAFETY COMPLIANCE $0.00 $250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $250.00 0%
10-550-1430 TRAINING - REGISTRATION & CLASS MATERIAL $255.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 0%
10-550-1431 TRAVEL MILEAGE $0.00 $230.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $230.00 0%
10-550-1432 MEALS $0.00 $225.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $225.00 0%
10-550-1433 LODGING $0.00 $900.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $900.00 0%
10-550-1440 UNIFORMS $0.00 $300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 0%
10-550-1610 NON-CAPITAL EQUIPMENT PURCHASE $1,568.89 $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 0%
10-550-1710 AUTO FUEL $210.67 $500.00 $70.80 $105.45 $0.00 $394.55 21%
10-550-1730 VEHICLE MAINT. & REPAIRS $146.40 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0%
10-550-4510 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $7,780.37 $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 0%
10-550-5730 CONTINGENCY $0.00 $250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $250.00 0%
550 Total $285,116.01 $303,142.00 $21,677.76 $74,864.18 $0.00 $228,277.82 25%

10-560-0000 PUBLIC WORKS: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
10-560-0200 SALARIES AND WAGES $513,572.68 $608,513.00 $35,933.00 $124,934.11 $0.00 $483,578.89 21%
10-560-0201 OVERTIME $9,386.63 $5,202.00 $865.10 $3,189.55 $0.00 $2,012.45 61%
10-560-0500 FICA EXPENSE $38,204.34 $49,131.00 $2,643.58 $9,269.30 $0.00 $39,861.70 19%
10-560-0600 GROUP INSURANCE EXPENSE $83,578.14 $103,554.00 $5,867.60 $17,298.32 $0.00 $86,255.68 17%
10-560-0700 RETIREMENT EXPENSE $77,723.07 $98,701.00 $5,992.66 $20,874.45 $0.00 $77,826.55 21%
10-560-0800 WORKERS COMPENSATION $20,545.29 $25,880.00 $0.00 $25,864.73 $0.00 $15.27 100%
10-560-1110 TELEPHONE $2,629.44 $2,500.00 $335.70 $583.14 $0.00 $1,916.86 23%
10-560-1111 TELEPHONE- CELLULAR $979.79 [ ® |31 ,000.00 $81.33 $162.83 $0.00 $837.17 16%
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Expend Account Description
10-560-1120 INTERNET\CABLE
10-560-1130 POSTAGE
10-560-1210 OFFICE SUPPLIES
10-560-1220 OFFICE EQUIPMENT (NON-CAPITAL)
10-560-1221 OFFICE EQUIPMENT LEASE
10-560-1230 OFFICE CONTRACT SERVICES
10-560-1250 DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS
10-560-1310 ELECTRIC
10-560-1320 LP GAS
10-560-1330 WATER/SEWER/SOLID WASTE
10-560-1420 OSHA/SAFETY COMPLIANCE
10-560-1430 TRAINING -REGISTRATION & CLASS
10-560-1431 TRAVEL MILEAGE
10-560-1432 MEALS
10-560-1433 LODGING
10-560-1440 UNIFORMS
10-560-1610 NON-CAPITAL EQUIPMENT PURCHASE
10-560-1630 EQUIPMENT MAINT. & REPAIRS
10-560-1710 AUTO FUEL
10-560-1730 VEHICLE MAINT. & REPAIRS
10-560-1820 PERMITS & FEES - ONE TIME
10-560-3310 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES & MATERIAL
10-560-3320 STREETSCAPING MATERIALS
10-560-3811 STREET CONT. SERVICES
10-560-3812 STREET SUPPLIES & MAT'L
10-560-3814 SIDEWALKS & MULTI-MODAL
10-560-4550 CONTRACT SERVICES
10-560-4590 DREDGING EXPENSE

TOWN OF BEAUFORT 10/19/2021
Statement of Revenue and Expenditures - Operating 1 9. o
Prior Yr Expd Budgeted Curr Expd YTD Expd Encumbered Balance % Expd
$5,396.84 $4,900.00 $450.16 $900.32 $0.00 $3,999.68 18%
$5,269.71 $4,500.00 $0.00 $906.12 $0.00 $3,593.88 20%
$2,140.49 $2,100.00 $32.97 $32.97 $50.14 $2,016.89 4%
$53.73 $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 0%
$3,338.47 $3,350.00 $266.30 $1,069.98 $0.00 $2,280.02 32%
$2,671.47 $2,421.69 $0.00 $326.86 $121.69 $1,973.14 19%
$663.39 $800.00 $64.48 $103.95 $19.99 $676.06 15%
$6,032.75 $7,000.00 $735.25 $2,194.72 $0.00 $4,805.28 31%
$3,446.06 $3,000.00 $21.73 $29.23 $0.00 $2,970.77 1%
$1,875.39 $2,727.61 $240.80 $442.23 $0.00 $2,285.38 16%
$3,170.84 $5,750.00 $197.04 $611.84 $29.48 $5,108.68 1%
$1,168.54 $3,250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,250.00 0%
$0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0%
$417.39 $750.00 $0.00 $107.82 $0.00 $642.18 14%
$0.00 $750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $750.00 0%
$5,970.87 $7,250.00 $236.01 $1,085.43 $0.00 $6,164.57 15%
$18,167.92 $8,500.00 $2,078.01 $2,922.74 $459.77 $5,117.49 40%
$5,296.99 $10,500.00 $120.92 $724.84 $0.00 $9,775.16 7%
$11,623.96 $15,500.00 $1,175.43 $3,655.26 $624.87 $11,219.87 28%
$10,365.95 $17,000.00 $405.28 $5,156.83 $0.00 $11,843.17 30%
$202.65 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0%
$3,306.31 $8,000.00 $215.41 $700.16 $42.48 $7,257.36 9%
$0.00 $74.58 $0.00 $0.00 $74.58 $0.00 100%
$0.00 $8,000.00 -$1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $7,000.00 12%
$4,180.20 $10,500.00 $237.19 $949.39 $0.00 $9,550.61 9%
$8,927.53 $19,080.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,240.00 $2,840.00 85%
$5,743.52 512,000.00 $0.00 $1,075.00 $5,200.00 $5,725.00 52%
$0.00 | 8 }71,700.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00  $171,700.00 0%
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Statement of Revenue and Expenditures - Operating 1 9. B

Expend Account Description Prior Yr Expd Budgeted Curr Expd YTD Expd Encumbered Balance % Expd
10-560-5400 INSURANCE $14,342.56 $18,935.00 $372.37 $17,926.37 $0.00 $1,008.63 95%
10-560-5900 STREET LIGHTS $140,819.19 $146,880.00 $11,931.42 $35,187.89 $0.00 $111,692.11 24%
10-560-7420 CAPITAL OUTLAY - EQUIPMENT $91,635.10 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
10-560-7430 CAPITAL OUTLAY - VEHICLES $103,580.39 $255,000.00 $5,604.38 $192,050.38 $55,294.67 $7,654.95 97%
10-560-8010 DEBT SERVICES-PRINCIPAL $245,000.00 $253,452.18 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $253,452.18 0%
10-560-8011 DEBT SERVICES-INTEREST $85,933.74 $83,850.06 $41,846.00 $41,846.00 $0.00 $42,004.06 50%
560 Total $1,537,361.33  $1,985,002.12 $116,950.12 $513,182.76 $78,157.67 $1,393,661.69 30%

10-570-0000 SANITATION: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
10-570-1310 ELECTRIC FOR COMPACTOR $632.52 $1,000.00 $43.73 $130.13 $0.00 $869.87 13%
10-570-1630 EQUIPMENT MAINT. $1,736.10 $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 0%
10-570-1710 AUTO FUEL $7,712.17 $15,000.00 $669.94 $2,372.53 $0.00 $12,627.47 16%
10-570-1730 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE $1,230.05 $1,000.00 $0.00 $8.99 $0.00 $991.01 1%
10-570-4520 COLLECTION CONTRACTED SV WBD ROLLOUT $23,836.36 $24,000.00 $2,028.89 $4,025.48 $0.00 $19,974.52 17%
10-570-4521 COLLECTION CONTRACTSVC RESROLLOUT S\ $448,835.45 $464,400.00 $40,986.34 $80,574.34 $0.00 $383,825.66 17%
10-570-4560 RECYCLING DISPOSAL WBD CARDBOARD ONL $7,507.14 $7,500.00 $636.72 $1,263.39 $0.00 $6,236.61 17%
10-570-4561 SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL RES BULK SERVICE $33,969.13 $36,000.00 $3,700.84 $6,405.00 $0.00 $29,595.00 18%
10-570-4562 YARD DEBRIS DISPOSAL FEE DEE GARNER $38,060.00 $38,000.00 $5,690.00 $18,460.00 $0.00 $19,540.00 49%
10-570-4563 SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL WBD COMPACTOR FE $29,589.66 $31,200.00 $4,722.96 $8,225.56 $0.00 $22,974.44 26%
10-570-8010 DEBT SERVICES- PRINCIPAL (GRAPPLE TRUCK $38,028.00 $38,086.99 $38,028.00 $38,028.00 $0.00 $58.99 100%
10-570-8011 DEBT SERVICES - INTEREST (GRAPPLE TRUCk $1,436.00 $1,386.37 $1,385.90 $1,385.90 $0.00 $0.47 100%
570 Total $632,572.58 $659,073.36 $97,893.32 $160,879.32 $0.00 $498,194.04 24%

10-580-0000 STORMWATER $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
10-580-1610 NON-CAPITAL EQUIPMENT PURCHASES $5,293.77 $25,200.00 $704.11 $1,203.61 $700.12 $23,296.27 8%
10-580-1710 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS $14,950.32 $10,800.00 $1,746.25 $3,092.03 $736.58 $6,971.39 35%
10-580-4550 CONTRACT SERVICES $55,036.48 $42,200.00 $0.00 $2,812.04 $0.00 $39,387.96 7%
580 Total $75,280.57 $78,200.00 $2,450.36 $7,107.68 $1,436.70 $69,655.62 1%

10-620-0000 FACILITIES & GROUND MAIN: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
10-620-1330 WATER\SEWER\SOLID WASTE $637.07 | 81 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
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Expend Account Description
10-620-1510 TOWN HALL BLDG MAINT
10-620-1511 TOWN HALL GROUND MAINT
10-620-1512 TOWN HALL JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
10-620-1513 TOWN HALL CONTRACTED SERVICES
10-620-1520 TRAIN DEPOT BLDG MAINT
10-620-1522 TRAIN DEPOT JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
10-620-1530 POLICE DEPT BLDG MAINT
10-620-1532 POLICE DEPT JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
10-620-1533 POLICE DEPT CONTRACTED SERVICES
10-620-1540 PUBLIC WORKS BLDG MAINT
10-620-1541 PUBLIC WORKS GROUND MAINT
10-620-1542 PUBLIC WORKS JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
10-620-1550 CEMETERY MAINTENANCE
10-620-1560 PUBLIC RESTROOM BLDG MAINT
10-620-1562 PUBLIC RESTROOM JANITORIAL SUPPLY
10-620-1570 PARKS MAINTENANCE
10-620-1571 RJP PARK MAINTENANCE
10-620-1572 TOPSAIL PARK IMPROVEMENTS
10-620-1573 PARKS CONTRACTED SERVICE
10-620-1580 DOCKS AND BOARDWALK MAINT
10-620-1590 PUBLIC R.O.W. MAINT
10-620-1591 TREES
10-620-1610 NON CAPITAL EQUIPMENT PURCHASE
10-620-1630 EQUIPMENT MAINT & REPAIRS
10-620-3310 DEPARTMENTAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS
10-620-4550 CONTRACT SERVICES
10-620-7420 CAPITAL OUTLAY/EQUIPMENT

620 Total

TOWN OF BEAUFORT 10/19/2021
Statement of Revenue and Expenditures - Operating 1 9. B
Prior Yr Expd Budgeted Curr Expd YTD Expd Encumbered Balance % Expd
$86,693.85 $77,600.00 $306.48 $702.78 $16,907.48 $59,989.74 23%
$488.77 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0%
$1,132.95 $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $37.36 $1,462.64 2%
$0.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 0%
$951.87 $28,060.00 $0.00 $699.45 $0.00 $27,360.55 2%
$722.43 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 0%
$23,286.96 $8,000.00 $59.88 $336.98 $0.00 $7,663.02 4%
$89.68 $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 0%
$0.00 $2,000.00 $330.05 $330.05 $0.00 $1,669.95 17%
$15,536.96 $11,000.00 $2,014.05 $2,581.34 $0.00 $8,418.66 23%
$0.00 $750.00 $0.00 $14.25 $0.00 $735.75 2%
$232.64 $500.00 $20.97 $20.97 $0.00 $479.03 4%
$9,910.99 $19,646.18 $941.59 $4,509.08 $0.00 $15,137.10 23%
$6,017.43 $6,000.00 $549.87 $1,459.73 $0.00 $4,540.27 24%
$8,786.07 $8,000.00 $699.45 $3,681.88 $344.19 $3,973.93 50%
$12,503.84 $10,000.00 $1,380.93 $3,141.33 $353.71 $6,504.96 35%
$12,275.49 $14,000.00 $1,561.67 $4,046.06 $0.00 $9,953.94 29%
$45,354.01 $9,040.00 $0.00 $7,539.79 $0.00 $1,500.21 83%
$1,244.49 $26,000.00 $85.87 $257.61 $0.00 $25,742.39 1%
$2,633.99 $5,500.00 $304.51 $304.51 $0.00 $5,195.49 6%
$20,351.45 $15,500.00 $3,000.00 $3,593.90 $0.00 $11,906.10 23%
$5,535.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 0%
$1,461.05 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $149.45 $2,350.55 6%
$3,209.03 $2,500.00 $0.00 $380.66 $0.00 $2,119.34 15%
$1,607.66 $4,200.00 $198.54 $235.10 $0.00 $3,964.90 6%
$0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 0%
$0.00 £412,950.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,344.50 $94,605.50 16%
$260,663.68 | 2 886,246.18 $11,453.86 $33,835.47 $36,136.69 $316,274.02 18%
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Statement of Revenue and Expenditures - Operating 1 9. B

Expend Account Description Prior Yr Expd Budgeted Curr Expd YTD Expd Encumbered Balance % Expd
10-700-0000 NON-DEPARTMENTAL: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
10-700-0206 MERIT AWARDS $0.00 $60,337.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $60,337.00 0%
10-700-1120 INTERNET- FIBER HUB CONNECTION $11,715.13 $8,000.00 $606.23 $1,212.39 $0.00 $6,787.61 15%
10-700-1130 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES $53,709.17 $87,220.00 $8,085.23 $17,114.76 $0.00 $70,105.24 20%
10-700-1250 EURY'S LANDING CONDOMINIUM ANNUAL DUE $800.00 $820.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $820.00 0%
10-700-1410 HUMAN RESOURCES - EMPLOYMENT $8,014.45 $35,760.00 $9,357.20 $12,998.95 $12,333.34 $10,427.71 71%
10-700-1420 HUMAN RESOURCES - TRAINING $2,000.00 $20,400.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,400.00 0%
10-700-1450 EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT $3,180.48 $12,240.00 $0.00 $5,673.87 $53.38 $6,512.75 47%
10-700-1592 WBD PROJECTS $17,542.32 $55,289.00 $1,272.06 $5,699.60 $731.24 $48,858.16 12%
10-700-4510 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $46,161.44 $168,180.00 $8,707.20 $19,119.87 $81,682.67 $67,377.46 60%
10-700-4530 LEGAL SERVICES $153,967.28 $135,000.00 $18,635.00 $48,119.22 $65,880.78 $21,000.00 84%
10-700-5600 CONTRIBUTIONS TO OTHER AGENCIES $2,100.00 $4,600.00 $0.00 $2,100.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 46%
10-700-5730 CONTINGENCY $0.00 $119,821.89 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $119,821.89 0%
10-700-7430 CAPITAL OUTLAY - VEHICLES $0.00 $142,024.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $142,024.00 0%
10-700-8010 DEBT SERVICE - PRINCIPAL $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 100%
10-700-8011 DEBT SERVICE - INTEREST $19,485.38 $16,438.06 $0.00 $8,898.02 $0.00 $7,540.04 54%
10-700-9010 COVID-19 RESPONSE $8,675.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
10-700-9020 CARES RELIEF FUNDS $93,117.13 $0.00 $1,493.23 $1,493.23 $0.00 -$1,493.23 0%
700 Total $520,467.78 $966,129.95 $48,156.15 $222,429.91 $160,681.41 $583,018.63 40%

10-800-0000 GENERAL FUND TRANSFERS: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
10-800-0064 TRANSFER TO CAPITAL PROJECTS $0.00 $100,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 0%
10-800-8000 TRANSFER TO CAPITAL RESERVE $185,000.00 $185,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $185,000.00 0%
800 Total $185,000.00 $285,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $285,000.00 0%

General Fund Expend Total $9,067,058.90 $11,809,968.26 $703,994.52  $2,905,340.83 $778,552.12 $8,126,075.31 31%

83
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Statement of Revenue and Expenditures - Operating 1 9. B
Expend Account Description Prior Yr Expd Budgeted Curr Expd YTD Expd Encumbered Balance % Expd

10 General Fund Prior Current YTD

Revenue: $10,801,944.76 $773,731.17  $1,684,237.37

Expended:  $9,067,058.90 $703,994.52  $2,905,340.83

Net Income:  $1,734,885.86 $69,736.65 -$1,221,103.46
Revenue Account  Description Prior Yr Rev Anticipated Curr Rev YTD Rev Excess/Deficit % Real
40-303-0009 GRANTS NC $127,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
40-305-0001 REVENUE ACCOUNT REGULAR - WATER USAG  $1,250,911.65 $1,240,000.00 $119,304.08 $393,505.98 -$846,494.02 32%
40-305-0002 REVENUE ACCOUNT REGULAR - SEWER USAC  $3,095,142.18 $3,150,000.00 $276,497.27 $858,067.31  -$2,291,932.69 27%
40-305-0003 WATER TAP IN FEES $98,500.00 $44,750.00 $14,000.00 $30,500.00 -$14,250.00 68%
40-305-0004 SEWER TAP IN FEE $68,250.00 $41,250.00 $8,250.00 $23,250.00 -$18,000.00 56%
40-305-0005 ACCOUNT SERVICE CHARGES $6,050.00 $10,000.00 $370.00 $1,200.00 -$8,800.00 12%
40-305-0006 WATER SERVICE CHARGES $77.64 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
40-305-0007 SEWER SERVICE CHARGES -$9,399.89 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
40-305-0008 LATE FEES - WATER -$95.08 $40,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 -$40,000.00 0%
40-305-0009 LATE FEES - SEWER/GREASE -$3.80 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
40-305-0010 RETURNED CHECK FEES - WATER $300.00 $0.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 0%
40-305-0012 TEMPORARY UTILITY USE CHARGE $1,950.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 -$1,000.00 0%
40-305-0013 SPRINKLER FEES $4,375.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 -$3,000.00 0%
40-305-0014 SEWER ALLOCATION REQUEST FEE $250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
40-307-0001 INVESTMENT EARNINGS-WATER $1,176.34 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
40-307-0011 APP.UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE $0.00 $124,236.00 $0.00 $0.00 -$124,236.00 0%
40-329-0065 TRANSFER FROM CRF $33,000.00 $90,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 -$90,000.00 0%
40-900-9000 cancel revenue $300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
Utility Fund Revenue Total $4,678,534.04 $4,744,236.00 $418,446.35 $1,306,548.29 -$3,437,687.71 28%
Expend Account Description Prior Yr Expd Budgeted Curr Expd YTD Expd Encumbered Balance % Expd
40-800-0206 MERIT AWARDS $0.00 | 84 §16,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,000.00 0%
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Expend Account Description

40-800-1240 CONTRIBUTION TO GF FOR ADMIN SERVICES
40-800-8000 TRANSFER TO CAPITAL RESERVE

800 Total

40-810-0000 SEWER DEPARTMENT

40-810-0200 SALARIES AND WAGES

40-810-0201 OVERTIME

40-810-0500 FICA EXPENSE

40-810-0600 GROUP INSURANCE EXPENSE
40-810-0700 RETIREMENT EXPENSE

40-810-0800 WORKERS COMPENSATION
40-810-1110 TELEPHONE

40-810-1111 TELEPHONE-CELLULAR

40-810-1120 INTERNET/CABLE

40-810-1130 POSTAGE

40-810-1210 OFFICE SUPPLIES

40-810-1230 OFFICE CONTRACT SERVICES
40-810-1250 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS

40-810-1310 ELECTRIC

40-810-1330 WATER/SEWER/SOLID WASTE
40-810-1420 OSHA/SAFETY COMPLIANCE
40-810-1422 SAFETY SUPPLIES & MATERIALS
40-810-1430 TRAINING - REGISTRATION & CLASS MA
40-810-1431 TRAVEL MILEAGE

40-810-1432 MEALS

40-810-1433 LODGING

40-810-1434 EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT
40-810-1440 UNIFORMS

40-810-1510 BUILDING MAINT

TOWN OF BEAUFORT

10/19/2021

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures - Operating 1 9. o
Prior Yr Expd Budgeted Curr Expd YTD Expd Encumbered Balance % Expd
$600,000.00 $624,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $624,000.00 0%
$350,000.00 $350,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $350,000.00 0%
$950,000.00 $990,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $990,000.00 0%
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
$446,907.05 $430,499.00 $34,054.44 $111,913.64 $0.00 $318,585.36 26%
$46,248.29 $49,159.00 $3,730.93 $12,909.94 $0.00 $36,249.06 26%
$36,493.28 $38,391.00 $2,786.06 $9,219.99 $0.00 $29,171.01 24%
$55,580.73 $59,173.00 $4,101.02 $12,309.38 $0.00 $46,863.62 21%
$74,227.88 $79,105.00 $6,175.97 $20,409.73 $0.00 $58,695.27 26%
$7,216.79 $18,981.00 $0.00 $10,634.66 $0.00 $8,346.34 56%
$10,502.45 $9,300.00 $894.80 $1,965.15 $0.00 $7,334.85 21%
$775.63 $741.00 $59.66 $119.50 $0.00 $621.50 16%
$4,495.74 $5,200.00 $374.87 $749.74 $0.00 $4,450.26 14%
$6,304.97 $4,800.00 $154.22 $1,165.08 $0.00 $3,634.92 24%
$1,074.34 $1,951.88 $0.00 $87.10 $46.96 $1,817.82 7%
$2,068.96 $2,000.00 $0.00 $326.87 $0.00 $1,673.13 16%
$1,430.66 $1,300.00 $44.22 $114.71 -$50.00 $1,235.29 5%
$180,428.74 $199,800.00 $15,843.15 $46,620.96 $0.00 $153,179.04 23%
$839.79 $1,000.00 $67.15 $133.65 $0.00 $866.35 13%
$2,036.98 $3,100.00 $165.67 $315.71 $0.00 $2,784.29 10%
$91.38 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
$1,342.09 $2,000.00 $0.00 $860.00 $0.00 $1,140.00 43%
$117.16 $200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 0%
$0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0%
$0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 0%
$0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 0%
$5,341.15 $5,100.00 $498.40 $1,298.21 $0.00 $3,801.79 25%
$3,438.91 | 8 $8,000.00 $1,688.00 $3,702.76 $2,532.00 $1,765.24 78%
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Statement of Revenue and Expenditures - Operating 1 9. B

Expend Account Description Prior Yr Expd Budgeted Curr Expd YTD Expd Encumbered Balance % Expd
40-810-1512 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES $666.82 $1,000.00 $131.41 $142.99 $16.18 $840.83 16%
40-810-1610 NON-CAPITAL EQUIPMENT PURCHASE $0.00 $32,300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $32,300.00 0%
40-810-1620 EQUIPMENT LEASE -$38.14 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
40-810-1630 EQUIPMENT MAINT & REPAIRS $71,645.34 $100,000.00 $5,266.01 $17,738.88 $3,982.92 $78,278.20 22%
40-810-1710 AUTO FUEL $13,260.05 $16,000.00 $949.85 $2,681.87 $0.00 $13,318.13 17%
40-810-1730 VEHICLE MAINT & REPAIRS $2,998.39 $6,000.00 $620.92 $1,715.63 $0.00 $4,284.37 29%
40-810-1810 PERMITS & FEES - RECCURING $7,907.75 $8,620.00 $0.00 $2,560.00 $0.00 $6,060.00 30%
40-810-1830 COMPLIANCE TESTING $8,069.92 $15,000.00 $739.00 $3,126.00 $0.00 $11,874.00 21%
40-810-3310 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES & MATERIALS - SEWE $10,834.05 $19,000.00 $11,401.52 $14,848.43 $402.91 $3,748.66 80%
40-810-3311 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES & MATERIALS -WWTP $42,742.11 $44,500.00 $3,734.50 $15,901.08 $489.71 $28,109.21 37%
40-810-4510 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $65,168.82 $100,000.00 $3,600.00 $3,600.00 $26,400.00 $70,000.00 30%
40-810-4550 CONTRACT SERVICES $240,276.11 $73,965.00 $430.20 $476.58 $25,668.51 $47,819.91 35%
40-810-4560 STREET PATCHING FOR UTILITY REPAIRS $5,967.50 $17,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $17,000.00 0%
40-810-5400 INSURANCE $43,933.70 $64,000.00 $265.39 $52,176.86 $0.00 $11,823.14 82%
40-810-5730 CONTINGENCIES $0.00 $7,455.27 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,455.27 0%
40-810-7420 CAPITAL OUTLAY - EQUIPMENT $142,075.57 $9,565.00 $0.00 $887.00 $0.00 $8,678.00 9%
40-810-7430 CAPITAL OUTLAY - VEHICLES $0.00 $113,889.00 $0.00 $0.00 $113,888.93 $0.07 100%
40-810-8010 DEBT SERVICE-PRINCIPAL $1,034,364.67  $1,034,455.11 $4,840.00 $4,840.00 $0.00 $1,029,615.11 0%
40-810-8011 DEBT SERVICE-INTEREST $186,945.10 $168,408.36 $183.00 $183.00 $84,158.08 $84,067.28 50%
810 Total $2,763,780.73  $2,754,958.62 $102,800.36 $355,735.10 $257,536.20 $2,141,687.32 22%

40-812-0000 WATER DEPARTMENT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
40-812-0200 SALARIES AND WAGES $215,175.53 $204,069.00 $17,337.82 $60,416.97 $0.00 $143,652.03 30%
40-812-0201 OVERTIME $7,403.09 $16,647.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,647.00 0%
40-812-0500 FICA EXPENSE $16,726.89 $17,670.00 $1,319.95 $4,602.76 $0.00 $13,067.24 26%
40-812-0600 GROUP INSURANCE EXPENSE $28,253.16 $29,587.00 $2,343.44 $7,036.64 $0.00 $22,550.36 24%
40-812-0700 RETIREMENT EXPENSE $33,196.11 $36,397.00 $2,827.07 $9,860.24 $0.00 $26,536.76 27%
40-812-0800 WORKERS COMPENSATION $7,892.00 $8,627.00 $0.00 $8,400.00 $0.00 $227.00 97%
40-812-1110 TELEPHONE $1,187.83 | & |$2,040.00 $176.41 $346.14 $0.00 $1,693.86 17%
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Expend Account Description Prior Yr Expd Budgeted Curr Expd YTD Expd Encumbered Balance % Expd
40-812-1111 TELEPHONE-CELLULAR $723.66 $800.00 $66.03 $132.18 $0.00 $667.82 17%
40-812-1120 INTERNET/CABLE $3,895.86 $3,700.00 $324.88 $649.76 $0.00 $3,050.24 18%
40-812-1130 POSTAGE $5,258.72 $4,600.00 $0.00 $906.11 $0.00 $3,693.89 20%
40-812-1210 OFFICE SUPPLIES $246.24 $1,000.00 $0.00 $34.55 $0.00 $965.45 3%
40-812-1230 OFFICE CONTRACT SERVICES $3,829.85 $3,000.00 $0.00 $294.94 $156.39 $2,548.67 15%
40-812-1250 DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS $738.59 $2,500.00 $621.14 $673.44 $0.00 $1,826.56 27%
40-812-1310 ELECTRIC $42,830.97 $46,000.00 $4,087.87 $12,753.47 $0.00 $33,246.53 28%
40-812-1320 LP GAS $656.51 $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 0%
40-812-1330 WATER/SEWER/SOLID WASTE $771.40 $750.00 $60.37 $120.23 $0.00 $629.77 16%
40-812-1420 OSHA/SAFETY COMPLIANCE $660.40 $1,519.99 $0.00 $0.00 $19.99 $1,500.00 1%
40-812-1430 TRAINING -REGISTRATION&CLASS MAT'L $255.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 0%
40-812-1431 TRAVEL MILEAGE $0.00 $100.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 0%
40-812-1432 MEALS $0.00 $400.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $400.00 0%
40-812-1433 LODGING $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 0%
40-812-1434 EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 0%
40-812-1440 UNIFORMS $1,723.29 $2,600.00 $136.98 $506.80 $0.00 $2,093.20 19%
40-812-1510 BUILDING MAINT $1,171.70 $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,150.00 $0.00 -$150.00 108%
40-812-1512 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0%
40-812-1610 NON-CAPITAL EQUIPMENT PURCHASES $4,091.25 $9,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,000.00 0%
40-812-1630 EQUIPMENT MAINT. & REPAIRS $14,363.09 $20,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 0%
40-812-1710 AUTO FUEL $3,260.56 $5,000.00 $410.66 $1,213.63 $0.00 $3,786.37 24%
40-812-1730 VEHICLE MAINT. & REPAIRS $2,510.13 $4,000.00 $131.73 $263.25 $0.00 $3,736.75 7%
40-812-1810 PERMITS & FEES - REOCCURING $4,575.00 $4,575.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,575.00 0%
40-812-1830 COMPLIANCE TESTING $6,300.54 $13,000.00 $700.00 $1,400.00 $0.00 $11,600.00 1%
40-812-3310 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES & MATERIALS - METEI $52,465.37 $50,020.97 $189.50 $37,371.66 $20.97 $12,628.34 75%
40-812-3311 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES & MATERIALS -PLANT $84,247.35 $70,000.00 $8,417.00 $27,653.40 $1,355.52 $40,991.08 41%
40-812-4550 CONTRACT SERVICES $60,781.74 $62,000.00 $238.27 $26,488.82 $0.00 $35,511.18 43%
40-812-4560 STREET PATCHING FOR UTILITY REPAIRS $11,117.50 | &7 517,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $17,000.00 0%
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40-812-4570 COUNTY WATER PURCHASE $37,167.13 $38,500.00 $0.00 $9,191.01 $0.00 $29,308.99 24%
40-812-5400 INSURANCE $17,200.00 $20,700.00 $0.00 $18,217.47 $0.00 $2,482.53 88%
40-812-5730 CONTINGENCIES $0.00 $12,863.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,863.00 0%
40-812-7420 CAPITAL OUTLAY - EQUIPMENT $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 0%
40-812-7430 CAPITAL OUTLAY-VEHICLES $0.00 $50,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $41,059.09 $8,940.91 82%
40-812-7440 CAPITAL OUTLAY - CONT. SERVICES $0.00 $90,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $84,660.00 $5,340.00 94%
40-812-8010 DEBT SERVICE - PRINCIPAL $102,150.40 $102,240.84 $4,840.00 $4,840.00 $0.00 $97,400.84 5%
40-812-8011 DEBT SERVICE - INTEREST $30,938.81 $28,911.54 $183.00 $183.00 $14,409.67 $14,318.87 50%
812 Total $803,765.67 $999,318.34 $44,412.12 $235,706.47 $141,681.63 $621,930.24 38%
Utility Fund Expend Total $4,517,546.40  $4,744,276.96 $147,212.48 $591,441.57 $399,217.83 $3,753,617.56 21%

40 Utility Fund Prior Current YTD

Revenue:  $4,678,534.04 $418,446.35  $1,306,548.29

Expended:  $4,517,546.40 $147,212.48 $591,441.57

Net Income: $160,987.64 $271,233.87 $715,106.72
Revenue Account  Description Prior Yr Rev Anticipated Curr Rev YTD Rev Excess/Deficit % Real
60-305-0000 WATER CAPACITY FEES $10,948.00 $0.00 $2,856.00 $4,760.00 $4,760.00 0%
60-305-0001 SEWER CAPACITY FEES $249,261.60 $0.00 $33,144.00 $55,240.00 $55,240.00 0%
Impact Fee Fund Revenue Total $260,209.60 $0.00 $36,000.00 $60,000.00 $60,000.00 0%

60 Impact Fee Fund Prior Current YTD

Revenue: $260,209.60 $36,000.00 $60,000.00

Expended: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Net Income: $260,209.60 $36,000.00 $60,000.00
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Grand Totals




Revenue:
Expended:

Net Income:

Prior Current YTD
$15,740,688.40  $1,228,177.52  $3,050,785.66
$13,584,605.30 $851,207.00 $4,674,552.35

$2,156,083.10 $376,970.52 -$1,623,766.69
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Town of Beaufort, NC

701 Front St. - P.O. Box 390 - Beaufort, N.C. 28516 252-728-
2141 - 252-728-3982 fax - www.beaufortnc.org

Board of CommissionersVirtual
Work Session
4:00 PM - Monday, Oct. 25, 2021

10.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Items for Discussion and Consideration
SUBJECT: FY 2022 Budget Amendment 4
BRIEF SUMMARY:

General Fund
This amendment requests the appropriation of fund balance for:

e Police Department: ammunition ordered in FY 21 and on backorder $6,600
Utility Fund

e This amendment requests the appropriation of fund balance to upgrade the SCADA control equipment
for the Wastewater Treatment Plant. The current control equipment is outdated and not compatible with
the new computer system. The SCADA system operates all the control systems for the entire Wastewater
Treatment Plant, $20,000.

REQUESTED ACTION:

Approve Budget Amendment 4

EXPECTED LENGTH OF PRESENTATION: 5 minutes
5 minutes

SUBMITTED BY:

Christi Wood — Finance Director

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED:

Yes
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TOWN OF BEAUFORT
FY 2022 BUDGET AMENDMENT #4

WHEREAS, the Town of Beaufort adopted its Fiscal Year 2022 Budget through Ordinance on June 14, 2021, and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners recognizes that periodic modifications to the estimated revenues and
expenditures for the fiscal year may be necessary for fiscal management purposes and to implement decisions of
the Board of Commissioners;

BE IT THEREFORE ORDAINED that the Board of Commissioners amends the Fiscal Year 2022 Budget as follows:

SECTION I: GENERAL FUND

This amendment requests the appropriation of fund balance for:

e Police Department: ammunition ordered in FY 21 and on backorder $6,600

A. REVENUE

INCREASE

APPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE .. .. ... $ 6,600
TOTALINCREASE $ 6,600

B. EXPENDITURES AUTHORIZED BY DEPARTMENT

INCREASE
POLICE DEPARTMENT S 6,600
TOTALINCREASE $ 6,600
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SECTION IIl: UTILITY FUND

This amendment requests the appropriation of fund balance to upgrade the SCADA equipment for the
Wastewater Treatment Plant.

A. REVENUE

INCREASE

APPROPRIATED UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE. . $ 20,000
TOTAL INCREASE $ 20,000

B. EXPENDITURES AUTHORIZED BY DEPARTMENT

INCREASE
SEWER DIVISION $ 20,000
TOTAL INCREASE $ 20,000

SECTION VI: DISTRIBUTION

Copies of this ordinance shall be furnished to the Town Manager and Finance Officer to be kept on file for their
direction in the disbursement of funds.

Adopted this 8th day of November, 2021

ATTEST:
Elizabeth Lewis Everette S. Newton
Town Clerk Mayor
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Town of Beaufort, NC

701 Front St. - P.O. Box 390 - Beaufort, N.C. 28516 252-728-
2141 - 252-728-3982 fax - www.beaufortnc.org

Board of CommissionersVirtual
Work Session
4:00 PM — Monday, Oct. 25, 2021

11.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Items for Discussion and Consideration
SUBJECT: Capital Project Ordinances - American Rescue Plan Act
BRIEF SUMMARY:

Capital Project Funds are created for projects that are going to take more than one fiscal year to
complete. Once the ordinance is adopted amendments can be made to the project as needed.
Capital Project Funds last for the life of the project and do not terminate at the end of each fiscal
year.

Two Capital Project Ordinances are attached for approval.
1. American Rescue Plan Act- Stormwater and Equipment $178,841.02
2. American Rescue Plan Act- Utilities $1,240,000

As approved in the FY 2022 Budget, the ARP Funding will be used for Stormwater work ($60K),
Water Treatment Plant Site Evaluation and Purchase ($500K) and Sewer Pump Station #7 in FY
22/[FY23 ($740K). Additionally, the Board has requested the upgrade of the audio-visual
equipment at the Train Depot to allow for hybrid meetings ($20K). The Town will receive two
distributions of funds totaling $1,418,841.02 — the first distribution has already been received.

There is $98,841.00 that remains unallocated — those funds cannot be spent until allocated by the
Board. Two separate project funds are requested to sperate governmental and enterprise
projects, as recommended by the Town’s auditor.

REQUESTED ACTION:

Approve both Capital Project Ordinances
EXPECTED LENGTH OF PRESENTATION:
5 minutes

SUBMITTED BY:

Christi Wood, Finance Director

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED:

Yes
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TOWN OF BEAUFORT
CAPITAL PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE
FEDERAL AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT 2021- UTILITIES

BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners by the Town of Beaufort that the following Capital Project Budget
Ordinance is adopted in accordance with Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina for
the American Rescue Plan Act funds.

SECTION I: REVNUE

To establish the project fund for the American Rescue Plan Act - Utilities funds as required. Revenue will come
from the following sources:

GRANT PROCEEDS $ 1,240,000

TOTAL REVENUE $ 1,240,000

SECTION IlI: EXPENDITURES

WATER $ 500,000
SEWER $ 740,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 1,240,000

SECTION III: DISTRIBUTION

Copies of this ordinance shall be furnished to the Town Manager and Finance Officer to be kept on file for their
direction in the disbursement of funds for carrying out this project.
Adopted this 8" day of November 2021.

ATTEST:
Elizabeth Lewis Everette S. Newton
Town Clerk Mayor

11.




TOWN OF BEAUFORT
CAPITAL PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE
FEDERAL AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT 2021- STORMWATER AND EQUIPMENT

BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners by the Town of Beaufort that the following Capital Project Budget
Ordinance is adopted in accordance with Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina for
the American Rescue Plan Act funds.

SECTION I: REVNUE

To establish the project fund for the American Rescue Plan Act - Stormwater and Equipment funds as required.
Revenue will come from the following sources:

GRANT PROCEEDS $178,841.02

TOTAL REVENUE $178,841.02

SECTION IlI: EXPENDITURES

STORMWATER $ 60,000.00
EQUIPMENT $ 20,000.00
FUTURE PROJECTS AS ALLOWED BY GRANT $98,841.02
TOTALEXPENDITURES $178,841.02

SECTION Ill: DISTRIBUTION

Copies of this ordinance shall be furnished to the Town Manager and Finance Officer to be kept on file for their
direction in the disbursement of funds for carrying out this project.
Adopted this 8" day of November 2021.

ATTEST:
Elizabeth Lewis Everette S. Newton
Town Clerk Mayor
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Town of Beaufort, NC

Board of Commissioners
Virtual Work Session Meeting
4:00 PM Monday, October 25, 2021

AGENDA CATEGORY: Closed Session
SUBJECT: Personnel

BRIEF SUMMARY:

A personnel matter will be discussed in closed session as provided for in NCGS 143-
318.11(a) (6).

REQUESTED ACTION:
Receive report.

EXPECTED LENGTH OF PRESENTATION:
5 minutes

SUBMITTED BY:
John Day, Town Manager, Jill Quattlebaum, Town Attorney

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED:
No
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